
 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING AGENDA   
26316 Hesperian Blvd. Hayward, CA 94545 • (510) 293-2971 • www.edenrop.org 

  

Thursday, November 3, 2022 

5:45 pm 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS  
Juan Campos, President   San Lorenzo Unified School District 

James Aguilar, Vice-President  San Leandro Unified School District 

Gabriel Chaparro, Member  Hayward Unified School District 

Gary Howard, Member   Castro Valley Unified School District 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the Eden Area ROP is to build a foundation for students that 

prepare them academically, technically, and professionally to meet 

challenging opportunities of the 21st Century with confidence and purpose. 



 

 

Regular Meeting of the ROP Governing Board 

Date: Thursday, November 3, 2022 

Time:   5:45 p.m. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
Welcome to the Eden Area Regional Occupational Program Governing Board Meeting. The purpose of the meeting is 
to consider matters of policy and business necessary for the operation of the Regional Occupational Program. 
 
Any member of the audience may speak on any agenda item by following this process, or upon recognition by the 
President by identifying him/herself and his/her organization affiliation prior to any action taken by the Governing Board.  
Such presentations may be limited. If there is a desire to address the Governing Board on a matter relating to the Eden 
Area ROP that does not appear on the agenda, this may be done during the “Public Comment” section. 
 
State law prohibits the ROP Governing Board from taking any action on or discussing items that are not on the posted 
agenda except to A) briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by the public in attendance; B) ask 
questions for clarification; C) provide a reference to a staff member or other resource for factual information in response 
to the inquiry; or D) ask a staff member to report back on the matter at the next meeting and/or place it on a future 
agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2 (a)) 
 
This meeting is being recorded. These recordings are maintained by the Eden Area ROP for 30 days and are available 
for review to the public upon request. 
 
 
 

NOTICE - COVID-19 PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY BOARD MEMBERS TO ATTEND VIRTUALLY 

 

Consistent with Assembly Bill 361, effective October 1, 2021, and the continued state of emergency (COVID-19), 

the Eden Area ROP Governing Board will continue to hold meetings via teleconferencing until further notice. The 

public is invited to participate via teleconference per the Zoom link below.  

 

Attend Zoom Meeting Instructions: 

 

• To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on LINK  or go 

https://zoom.us/j/99397978944?pwd=anVST3pGRDF4MjRjOHJMOUJNR3NyUT09 to at the noticed meeting 

time. 

Meeting ID: 993 9797 8944 

Passcode: EAROP23 

 

Instructions on how to join a meeting by video conference is available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-

us/articles/201362193 -Joining-a-Meeting. 

 

To listen to the meeting by phone, please call at the noticed meeting time 1-669-900-6833, then enter ID 

993 9797 8944, then press “#”. Passcode: 8908035 

 

Instructions on how to join a meeting by phone are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-

us/articles/201362663 -Joining-a-meeting-by-phone.  

 

Public Comment Instructions: 

 

• To comment by video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button to request to speak when Public 

Comment is being taken on the eligible Agenda item. You will then be unmuted, during your turn, and 

allowed to make public comments. After the allotted time, you will then be re-muted. Instructions on how 

to “Raise Your Hand” is available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129 -Raise-Hand-In-

Webinar. 

 

• To comment by phone, you will be prompted to “Raise Your Hand” by pressing “*9” to request to speak 

when Public Comment is being taken on the eligible Agenda Item. You will then be unmuted, during your 

turn, and allowed to make public comments. After the allotted time, you will then be re-muted. Instructions 

of how to raise your hand by phone are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663 

-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone. 

1

https://zoom.us/j/99397978944?pwd=anVST3pGRDF4MjRjOHJMOUJNR3NyUT09
https://zoom.us/j/99397978944?pwd=anVST3pGRDF4MjRjOHJMOUJNR3NyUT09
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663%20-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663%20-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129%20-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129%20-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663%20-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663%20-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone


Page 2 – Agenda for the November 3, 2022 Regular Meeting of the ROP Governing Board 

 
 

 

I.  Call to Order 
 

II.  Roll Call 
 

III.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 

IV.  Mission Statement 
 

V.  Approval of Agenda  
 

VI.  Public Comment for Agenda items and matters that are related to the Eden Area ROP  
 
 (According to the Brown Act, the Board may not comment or take action on items not on the agenda.) 
 

The Board respects and encourages the public to comment on matters on the Board agenda and within the 
Board’s jurisdiction. The Board fully supports civil discourse and requests that everyone respect each other and 
their point of view. 
 

Public Comment Instructions: 
 

• When it is time for the speakers to address the Board, your name will be called and you will then be 
unmuted and allowed to make public comments.  

 
• Speakers should rename their Zoom profile names to their real names to expedite this process.  

 
• After the comment, the microphone for the speaker’s Zoom profile will be muted. 

 
With Board consensus, the President may increase or decrease the time allowed. This meeting is being 
recorded to prepare the official minutes. 

 

VII.  Student of the Month  

 
A. Presentation of ROP Student of the Month Awards (page 4) 

 

VIII.  Consent Calendar  
 

Action by the Eden Area ROP Governing Board of the Eden Area Regional Occupational Program means that 

all items listed under the Consent Calendar are adopted by one single motion, unless a member of the 

Governing Board, the Superintendent, or a member of the public requests that any such item be removed 

from the Consent Calendar and voted upon separately. 

 

A. Request the Governing Board to approve the Minutes of the Regular Governing Board Meeting of 

October 7, 2022 (pages 5-10) 

 

B. Request the Governing Board to approve the Bill Warrants (pages 11-16) 

 

C. Request the Governing Board to approve the Personnel Action Items (pages 17-18) 

 

D. Request the Governing Board to approve the Listed Donations-DDS Construction Services (page 19) 

 

E. Request the Governing Board to approve the Adoption of Resolution 7-22/23: Proclaiming a Local 

Emergency, Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom Dated March 

4, 2020, and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period November 6, 2022 through 

December 6, 2022 (pages 20-23) 

 

F. Request the Governing Board to approve the Advisory Committee Members (pages 24-44) 

 

G. Request the Governing Board to approve the Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Items (pages 45-46) 

 

2



Page 3 – Agenda for the November 3, 2022 Regular Meeting of the ROP Governing Board 

H. Request the Governing Board to approve the Contract with American Stage Tours for Sophomore

Tour Transportation for the 2022-2023 School Year (pages 47-68)

IX. Information Items

A. ROP Pathway Review-Emergency Response (pages 69-70)

B. Recognition of the Eden Area ROP Teacher of the Year (page 71)

C. Business Partners of the Year (page 72)

D. First Reading of Governing Board Policies, Administrative Regulations, and Board Bylaw (pages 73-136)

X. Action Items

A. Request the Governing Board to approve Bid 22-23-001 for Transportation Services to San Jose

Charter, Inc. for the 2022-2023 School Year (pages 137-213)

B. Request the Governing Board to approve the Adoption of the Reclassification Request Procedures

and Policy (pages 214-217)

XI. Communications

A. Letter from the Alameda County Office of Education regarding the Adopted Budget (pages 218-219)

XII. Superintendent’s Report

XIII. Governing Board Reports

XIV. Recess to Closed Session

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (Pursuant Government Code Section 54956.9)

B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Superintendent (Government Code Sec. 54957)

XV. Reconvene to Open Session and Report Action Taken in Closed Session

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (Pursuant Government Code Section 54956.9)

B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Superintendent (Government Code Sec. 54957)

XVI. Adjournment

3



 

 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Manuschka Michaud, Principal 

SUBJECT:  Presentation of ROP Student of the Month Awards 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Eden Area ROP has developed a student recognition program to acknowledge 

outstanding efforts and achievements of our students.  

 

CURRENT SITUATION   
 

The student recognition program has proven to be a successful, motivational tool in the 

classroom, among the staff and the students of the Eden Area ROP. 

 

The following students were selected as ROP students of the month for November: 

  

STUDENT NAME HIGH SCHOOL ROP PROGRAM INSTRUCTOR  

Brittany Quiroz Mt. Eden 
First Responder (Fire 

Science/EMT) II 
John Peters 

Karisma Camila 

Robles Lugo 
San Lorenzo Medical Careers I Alysa Machado 

Adam Chen Arroyo Marketing II Christina Charlton 

Yazlin Martinez Hayward Entrepreneurship I Rick Charles 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Information only 

4



 

CONSENT CALENDAR 



 

 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the ROP Governing Board 

October 7, 2022 
 

I. Call to Order 

 

Juan Campos, Board President, called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. on Friday, 

October 7, 2022.  Due to COVID-19 all Board members and attendees attended the 

meeting virtually via Zoom. 

 

II. Roll Call 

 

Eden Area ROP Governing Board Members Present: 

Juan Campos, President  San Lorenzo USD  

James Aguilar, Vice-President  San Leandro USD arrived at 5:53 pm  

Gary Howard, Member  Castro Valley USD   

Gabriel Chaparro, Member  Hayward USD   

 
 Eden Area ROP Superintendent/Clerk of the Board Present:  
 Blaine Torpey 

 

Eden Area ROP Administrators Present: 

Craig Lang  Director of Adult Programs  

Brigitte Luna  Director of Educational Services  

Manuschka Michaud  Principal 

Anthony Oum  Fiscal Services Administrator  

 

Eden Area ROP Staff Present: 

Kent Doan  Cybersecurity Instructor 

Dr. Erika Emery  Careers in Education Instructor  

Jessica Fagundes  Career Counselor 

Gabriela Juarez   Executive Assistant   

Aaron Rosas  Entrepreneurship Instructor  

 

Others Present: 

Students of the Month and their families 

 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Pahola Mejia led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

IV. Mission Statement 

 

Aashita Gupta read the Eden Area ROP mission statement. 

 

V. Approval of Agenda 

 

Trustee Gary Howard moved to approve the agenda.  Trustee Gabriel Chaparro 

seconded the motion.  By the following vote, the agenda was approved: 

 

AYES:   3 (Campos, Chaparro, Howard)  

NOES:   0 

ABSTAIN:  0  

ABSENT: 1 (Aguilar) 

 

 

5



Page 2 - Minutes of the Regular ROP Governing Board Meeting October 7, 2022 

 

VI. Public Comment for Agenda items and matters that are related to the Eden Area ROP 

 

None 

 

VII. Student of the Month Awards 
 

The following students were honored by their teachers, ROP Staff and the Governing 

Board as students of the month for October 2022:  

 
STUDENT NAME HIGH SCHOOL ROP PROGRAM INSTRUCTOR  

Elijah Miguel Canonigo Mt. Eden Cybersecurity I P Doan 

Pahola Mejia Tennyson Careers in Education II P Emery 

Aashita Gupta Mt. Eden Entrepreneurship I P Rosas 

 

Jessica Fagundes, Career Counselor, introduced the instructors, who presented their 

students to the Governing Board.  A framed certificate of achievement was delivered to 

each student.  Each student was given an opportunity to introduce their family and say 

a few words. 

 

VIII. Consent Calendar 

 

Trustee Gary Howard moved to approve the consent calendar items as follows:  

 

A. Minutes of the Regular Governing Board Meeting of September 1, 2022  

B. Bill Warrants  

C. Personnel Action Items  

D. Quarterly Report on Williams Act Complaints and Resolutions  

E. Adoption of Resolution 6-22/23: Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the 

Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom Dated March 4, 

2020, and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period October 7, 

2022 through November 6, 2022  

F. Classification and Destruction of Records 

G. Agreement with Eide Bailly for GASB 87 Lease Implementation Consulting Services 

for the 2022-2023 School Year  

H. MOU with the Associated Builders and Contractors of Northern California (ABC 

NorCal) for the 2022-2023 School Year  

 

Trustee Gabriel Chaparro seconded the motion. 

 

AYES:   4 (Aguilar, Campos, Chaparro, Howard)  

NOES:   0 

ABSTAIN:  0  

ABSENT: 0 

 

IX. Information Items 

 

A. ROP Pathway Review-Education 

 

Manuschka Michaud, Principal, introduced Dr. Erika Emery, Instructor, to report on the 

Education pathway.  Dr. Emery shared that Careers in Education is a 2-year program 

with first and second year students.  Each year has a different curriculum which allows 

students to build on what they learned from the previous year. 

 

6



Page 3 - Minutes of the Regular ROP Governing Board Meeting October 7, 2022 

Dr. Emery reported that students enrolled in this class qualify for a child development 

permit, meet the requirements for the UC g credit, earn community college credits 

through articulation agreements and job placement assistance. 

 

Internship and in-class experiences are an important combination and crucial to the 

students’ ability to move forward and maintain employment and to qualify for 

certifications.  Many participating sites hire Careers in Education students as full-time 

employees after successfully completing the Careers in Education program.  Dr. Emery 

shared photos and videos of the students in action. 

 

B. ROP Pathway Review-Information Support and Services 

 

Manuschka Michaud, Principal, introduced Kent Doan, Instructor, to report on the 

Cybersecurity program. 

 

Mr. Doan reported that the program combines two industry certifications from two  

of the biggest tech companies of the world, Google and Cisco. Both courses are 

designed for students pursuing careers in IT who want practical knowledge and job 

training. The course curriculum starts with taking apart a computer and then rebuilding 

it.  Additionally, students are able to use virtual machines, a new technology, to 

practice on software computers to ethically hack and run simulations. 

 

The first half of the class is designed to prepare students for the Google IT Support 

Certification.  The online program is designed to prepare beginner learners for entry-

level jobs in IT support upon completion of the certificate. The program was developed 

by Google and covers the fundamentals of IT support, including troubleshooting, 

customer service, networking, operating systems, system administration, and security.  

The second half of the class focuses on Cyber Security Operations scope and 

sequence.  Students enrolled in the program and who complete it successfully are 

prepared with the skill set to obtain employment in the IT field.   

 

C. Back to School Night 

 

Manuschka Michaud, Principal, reported information about the Back to School Night.  

Back to School Night was held in-person on September 20, 2022 with over 150 parents 

and guardians in attendance.  In addition to parents coming to visit the classrooms, 

they were able to participate in hands-on activities.  Ms. Michaud concluded her report 

by sharing a video of the highlights of a day in the life at Eden Area ROP.  

 

D. Principals’ Breakfast 

 

Brigitte Luna, Director of Educational Services, shared that the annual Principals’ 

Breakfast was held on September 28, 2022.  ROP staff presented program information, 

discussed ways to strengthen partnerships and had time to collaborate with the 

principals and assistant principals.  The participants had an opportunity to tour the 

campus and see students in action.  

 

E. Eden Area ROP Core Values Draft  

 

Blaine Torpey, Superintendent, presented to the Governing Board the first draft the Eden 

Area ROP Core Values.  The goal of creating core values is to establish the foundation 

upon which ROP is going to activate our vision to achieve our mission.  The Eden Area 

ROP mission is clearly articulated, defined, and communicated and as an organization 

we want to develop a strategic process that starts with identifying the values that we 

hold as a school community.  The process was initiated at the start of the school year 

with the administrative team working on identifying the values that as a team hold dear 

7



Page 4 - Minutes of the Regular ROP Governing Board Meeting October 7, 2022 

in our roles as school leaders.   Next, Eden Area ROP staff identified their core values.  

Lastly, this information was synthesized and distilled down to five essential values that are 

critical and important to each of us and have been brought forth as a draft.  The next 

step in finalizing our core values prior to Board approval has been to share with our 

partner districts’ Superintendents, Eden Area ROP students, and our Governing Board to 

receive feedback and input.     

 

F. Reclassification Request Procedures and Policy Proposal 

 

Blaine Torpey, Superintendent, presented to the Governing Board the Reclassification 

Request Procedures and Policy proposal.  This proposal is to establish a process for 

classified employees to make a request to amend their job classification, their job 

description and/or their placement on the salary schedule.  The development of this 

proposal included research of different districts and county office of educations’ 

processes for reclassification as well as consulting personnel department experts and 

Eden Area ROP staff.    

 

The next step in finalizing our procedure prior to Board approval is to request  

feedback and input from our Governing Board.     

 

X. Action Items  

   

A. Request the Governing Board to approve the Second Reading and Adoption of 

Governing Board Policy, Administrative Regulations and Exhibits 

 

Upon review of and a motion by Trustee James Aguilar and a second by Trustee Gary 

Howard the Governing Board approved the second reading and adoption of 

Governing Board Policy, Administrative Regulations and Exhibits. 

 

AYES:   4 (Aguilar, Campos, Chaparro, Howard)  

NOES:   0 

ABSTAIN:  0  

ABSENT: 0 

 

B. Request the Governing Board to approve the Administrator Performance 

Evaluation Pilot for the 2022-2023 School Year 

 

Upon review of and a motion by Trustee Gary Howard and a second by Trustee Gabriel 

Chaparro the Governing Board approved the Administrator Performance Evaluation 

pilot for the 2022-2023 school year. 

 

AYES:   4 (Aguilar, Campos, Chaparro, Howard)  

NOES:   0 

ABSTAIN:  0  

ABSENT: 0 

 

C. Request the Governing Board to approve the Agreement with Bonnie Wills for 

Restorative Practices Services and Training for the 2022-2023 School Year 

 

Upon review of and a motion by Trustee Gary Howard and a second by Trustee Gabriel 

Chaparro the Governing Board approved the agreement with Bonnie Wills for 

Restorative Practices services and training for the 2022-2023 school year. 

 

AYES:   4 (Aguilar, Campos, Chaparro, Howard)  

NOES:   0 

ABSTAIN:  0  

8



Page 5 - Minutes of the Regular ROP Governing Board Meeting October 7, 2022 

ABSENT: 0 

 

XI. Superintendent’s Report  

 

Blaine Torpey, Superintendent, started his report by sharing that last night on Thursday, 

October 6, we celebrated the Eden Area ROP Automotive Collision and Repair 

Instructor, Daniel Pareja. Mr. Pareja was a nominee for the 2022 Alameda County 

Teacher of the Year. Through exceptional instruction, content and connection, Mr. 

Pareja continues to shepherd his students to greatness.  Mr. Pareja is an incredibly 

gracious, kind, enthusiastic individual and the Eden Area ROP is so lucky to have him.  

Mr. Torpey also took the opportunity to thank President Campos for being present at the 

event to celebrate with us.   

 

He continued his report by sharing that the Eden Area ROP continues to support the 

communities in our partner districts. Staff gave a presentation to San Lorenzo Unified School 

Districted, provided a tour to Castro Valley community leaders, partnered with Hayward Unified 

School District on some exciting initiatives and will be hosting San Leandro Unified School District 

teachers for professional development later this month. This highlights that these relationships 

between Eden Area ROP, teachers, administrators, and principals are so important, and it’s 

been a real joy to be part of that connective tissue to support students.  Our students are 

incredible and it's wonderful to be of service to them. 

 

The Eden Are ROP has successfully submitted applications for Strong Workforce Program and 

Career and Technical Education Incentive Grant on behalf of our partner districts. An 

important focus of these grants are programs that increase student awareness, access, and 

experience of the Eden Area ROP.  He thanked Linda Granger, Chief Operating Officer, for 

working diligently on these grants.   

 

He highlighted that as part of the effort to develop a strategic plan, EAROP has collectively 

been working to establish our organization’s core values. The values clearly communicate what 

we stand for, what we believe in, and the manner in which we are going to fulfill our mission. 

The Eden Area ROP staff participated in activities to help draft the values and now we are 

moving into the feedback phase, where stakeholder groups are asked to provide their input on 

the current draft. 

 

He also reported that COVID-19 related issues continue to be minimal. It has been a relief to all 

of us, however, staff continues to prepare for the reality of a winter surge.  

 

Superintendent Torpey concluded his report by providing an achievement under each of his 

four goals.   

 

Goal 1: Reinforce EAROP Organizational Infrastructure and Communication 

 

• Mission Statement Guided Strategic Plan: presenting Draft Core 

Values  

 

 Goal 2: Maintain and Refine High Quality CTE Programming 

 

• Program Self-Assessment: Aligning Pathway Reviews with 11 Elements 

for concise assessment of pathways  
 

Goal 3: Enhance Systems to Support the Success of All Students 

 

• Student Wellbeing: Students participating in BTSN presentations, 

Board Presentations, Student of the Month and Ambassadors 

Program  

9



Page 6 - Minutes of the Regular ROP Governing Board Meeting October 7, 2022 

 

 Goal 4: Fiscal and Resource Management, Leadership, and Innovation 

 

• Advocacy: Participating in CTE JPA Coalition, CAROCP, ACSA, ACOE 

Superintendent’s Council  

 

XII. Governing Board Reports 

 

Trustee Gary Howard, Castro Valley USD representative, reported that the Castro Valley 

Rotary and Castro Valley/Eden Area Chamber of Commerce toured the Eden Area 

ROP Center.  He felt it was important for the group to get to know and see what the 

ROP provides students in terms of career technical education and training.  He thanked 

Superintendent Torpey and staff for making the group feel so welcomed.  He hopes this 

creates a network of opportunities for internship and possible future employment for 

students.   

 

Trustee Juan Campos, San Lorenzo USD representative, thanked Mr. Torpey for the 

presentation he gave to the SLzUSD Governing Board and staff especially as the 

presentation was on the same night as the Eden Area ROP Back to School Night event.  

President Campos highlighted the three magnificent students that gave an amazing 

presentation.  The Board and staff were impressed and wanted to relay that to students.   

 

President Campos also shared that it was an honor to be in attendance at the ACOE 

Teacher of the Year event.  He said that Mr. Pareja’s story, dedication and commitment 

is an inspiration.  

 
XIII. Recess to Closed Session 

 

The meeting was called into closed session at 7:22 p.m. 
 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (Pursuant Government 
Code Section 54956.9) 

 

XIV. Reconvene to Open Session and Report any Action taken in Closed Session  

 

The meeting resumed to open session at 7:34 p.m. 
 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (Pursuant Government 
Code Section 54956.9) 

 
Board President, Juan Campos, announced that no action was taken. 
 

XV. Adjournment 
 

The Governing Board meeting was adjourned in honor of Daniel Pareja, Teacher of the 

Year.      

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

 

Approved by the Eden Area ROP Governing Board     . 

        

 Blaine Torpey, Superintendent/Clerk to the Eden Area ROP Governing Board 

 

10



 
 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Sabrina Ubhoff, Accounting Technician 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Bill Warrants 

 

CURRENT SITUATION   

 
The bill warrants submitted for approval are for the period of September 15, 2022 

through October 11, 2022 and include test warrant numbers and voided warrants. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

11



 
 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Mercedes Henderson, Human Resources Administrator  

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Personnel Action  

  Items 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 

 
The attached listing of personnel action items are the Eden Area ROP Superintendent’s 

recommendations for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

17



 
 

 

DATE:   November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM:   Blaine Torpey, Superintendent  

PREPARED BY: Craig Lang, Director of Adult Programs 

SUBJECT:   Request the Governing Board to approve the Listed Donations-DDS 

Construction Services 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Occasionally, gifts or monetary items are donated to the Eden Area ROP.   

 

CURRENT SITUATION   
 

During the 2022-2023 school year, DDS Construction Services has donated hundreds of 

pounds of unused metal of various types for the welding technology class to utilize in 

their curriculum every semester. 

 

A letter of acceptance will be sent to the donor.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

19



 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Adoption of Resolution 7- 

 22/23: Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the Proclamation of a 

 State of Emergency by Governor Newsom Dated March 4, 2020, and 

 Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period November 6, 

 2022 through December 6, 2022 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

On September 16, 2021, AB 361 became law, allowing legislative bodies to meet 

virtually during a proclaimed state of emergency if any of the following apply: 

 

1. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote 

social distancing, 

2. The purpose of the meeting is to determine, whether as a result of the 

emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 

safety of attendees, or 

3. The legislative body has already determined that as a result of the emergency, 

meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 

attendees. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

Public Schools in California are currently operating under mandates to maximize 

distancing as well as implement other safety measures to minimize the spread of 

COVID-19.  Hosting an in-person meeting at this time would present imminent risks to the 

health and safety of attendees.  Approving Resolution 7-22/23 would enable the Eden 

Area ROP to hold virtual Governing Board meetings.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

20



Resolution No. 6-22/23: Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor 

Newsom Dated March 4, 2020, and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period November 6, 2022 

through December 6, 2022 

Page 1 of 3 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 7-22/23 
Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the Proclamation of a 

State of Emergency by Governor Newsom Dated March 4, 2020, and 

Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period 

November 6, 2022 through December 6, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) is 

committed to preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of 

the Governing Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Eden Area ROP’s legislative bodies are open and public, 

as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any 

member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative 

bodies conduct their business; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), as amended by 

Assembly Bill 361, Chapter 165 of the Statutes of 2021, makes provisions for remote 

teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without 

compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to 

the existence of certain conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the 

Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 

conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 

state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and 

 

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, 

or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are 

within the Eden Area ROP’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-

caused disasters; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing or that the legislative body 

meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the county, specifically, a State of Emergency 

has been proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020, based on an outbreak of 

respiratory illness due to COVID-19; and 
 

WHEREAS, the World Health Organization, the United States Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention, the State of California including the California Department of Public 

Health, and the Alameda County Public Health Department have recognized that the 

country, state, and county face a life-threatening pandemic caused by the COVID-19 

virus; 

21



Resolution No. 6-22/23: Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor 

Newsom Dated March 4, 2020, and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period November 6, 2022 

through December 6, 2022 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

WHEREAS, with the continuing presence of COVID-19, opening a physical meeting 

location to the public to hold in-person Governing Board meetings would present an 

imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees given that members of the public 

are not required to be vaccinated to attend Board meetings, and with limited staff 

members, it is impractical to check and enforce the mask mandate and other indoor 

COVID-19 health and safety protocols for members of the public; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board does hereby find that the Governor’s March 4, 2020, 

State of Emergency proclamation due to the continuing presence of COVID-19 has 

caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within 

the county that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, 

and facilities of the Eden Area ROP, and desires to proclaim a local emergency and 

ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of 

California; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Governing Board does 

hereby find that the legislative bodies of the Eden Area ROP, including any subsidiary 
bodies and committees created by action of the Board, shall conduct their meetings 

without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 

54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies 

shall comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as 

prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and 

 
WHEREAS, to ensure the public has access to the Governing Board meetings on Zoom, 

the Eden Area ROP has posted and will continue to post the Zoom login information on 

its website and meeting agendas, and the public has and will continue to have the 

opportunity to provide live public comments during the Zoom meeting. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, The Governing Board of the Eden Area ROP hereby resolve as follows: 

 
Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

 
Section 2. Proclamation of Local Emergency. The Board hereby proclaims that a local 

emergency now exists throughout the county, and opening a physical meeting 

location to the public to hold in-person Governing Board meetings would present an 

imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees due to the continuing presence of 

COVID-19. 

 
Section 3. Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 

hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of a State of 

Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

 

 

 

22



Resolution No. 6-22/23: Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor 

Newsom Dated March 4, 2020, and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period November 6, 2022 

through December 6, 2022 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Blaine Torpey 

ROP Governing Board Clerk, Eden Area ROP 

Alameda County, State of California 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The Superintendent and legislative bodies 

of the Eden Area ROP are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary 
to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and 

public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other 

applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect November 6, 

2022, and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) December 6, 2022, or such time the 

Governing Board adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government 

Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of the 

Eden Area ROP may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph 

(3) of subdivision (b) of section 

54953. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Eden Area ROP on this 3rd day of 

November 2022, by the following vote: 

  

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSTENTIONS: 

ABSENT:  

 
 
 

 

23



 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Brigitte Luna, Director of Educational Services 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Advisory  

 Committee Members 

    

BACKGROUND  
 

In accordance with the 11 Elements of High-Quality Career Technical Education, 

advisory committees are established to provide advice and support for all career 

technical education programs. Business, community, and industry partners provide 

expertise and advice to the Eden Area ROP and school district CTE staff. Partners 

provide insight regarding the current labor market and support course description 

updates to meet industry standards. They also provide feedback on the acquisition of 

new textbooks and classroom materials. The Eden Area ROP coordinates 20 separate 

advisories for our programs and JPA member districts, according to CDE designated 

industry sectors and pathways. Our coordinated advisories foster collaboration among 

similar CTE programs and leverage the time of business partners to assist more than one 

program at a time. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

In accordance with the Carl D. Perkins Act, the Governing Board appoints advisory 

Committee members every year. A list of recommended advisory committee members 

is attached. Business, labor, and industry partners have signed a letter of commitment 

for this year’s advisories.   

 

PROGRAM LOCATION 

Automotive Collision and Refinishing  Center 

Automotive Technology Center, Castro Valley & San Leandro High 

Schools 

Biotechnology Castro Valley & Tennyson High Schools 

Careers in Education, Future Academy Center, Arroyo High School  

Careers in Law, Forensics and Public Safety Center & San Lorenzo High School 

Construction Technology, Wood 

Technology  

Center, Hayward & San Leandro High 

Schools  

Culinary Science, Food & Nutrition Center & Castro Valley High School  

24



 

 

PROGRAM LOCATION 

Cybersecurity, ICT Center, Castro Valley & Tennyson High 

School 

Dental Assisting Center 

Engineering Castro Valley High School  

First Responder (Fire Science /EMT) Center 

Graphics Mt. Eden, San Lorenzo, Castro Valley & San 

Leandro High Schools 

Marketing, Entrepreneurship Arroyo, Castro Valley, Mt. Eden, Hayward, 

Tennyson & San Leandro High Schools 

Medical Careers Center & Royal Sunset High School 

Photography, Advanced Photography Castro Valley, Hayward, Mt. Eden, Arroyo, 

& San Lorenzo High Schools 

Sports Medicine Mt. Eden, Hayward & Arroyo High Schools 

Theater Hayward & Eastbay Arts/Royal Sunset High 

Schools 

Video Production San Leandro & San Lorenzo High Schools 

Welding Technology Center & San Leandro High School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

25



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Transportation  

Pathway:  Structural Repair & Refinishing  

Instructor:  Daniel Pareja (ROP)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Lisa Daves Mendelson Autobody 

Edgar Juarez Caliber Collision  

Ben Shell Ben’s Auto Body and Repair 

 

26



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Transportation   

Pathway:  Systems Diagnostics, Service, and Repair  

Instructor:  David Espinoza (ROP), Darren Rees (CV), Andy Shyers (SLE)   
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Brain McKee  Hunter Engineering  
Mace Gjerman  Peterson University  
Ruben Gonzalez San Leandro Brake and Wheel Center 

Sean Mele Fred's Wrenchouse 

Jim Baum Chabot College 

Jonathan Sira Keystone Automotive 

Brian Hocker AAA Towing 

Robert Feliciano Robs Wash 

  

 

27



 
Advisory Members 

 
  

Sector:  Health Science & Medical Technology   

Pathway:  Biotechnology  

Instructor:  Laura O’ Brien (CV), Lata Mistry (CV), Karen Kelly (TEN)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Gary Howard  Gladstone Institute  

Matthew Kaser  Bell & Associates  

Thomas Maciel Lester  Audentes Therapeutics  

Tiffani Quan  University of California, Berkeley  
  

  
 

28



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Education, Child Development, and Family Services  

Pathway:  Education  

Instructor:  Erika Emery (ROP), Brian Fredin (ARR)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Deidra Daniels   Childcare Center  

DiShawn Givens  Fremont Unified School District  

Ciarra Barron Hayward Unified School District 

Denise Williams-West Jefferson Elementary School in San Leandro 
 

29



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Public Services  

Pathway:  Public Safety  

Instructor:  Ashley Auguste (ROP), Michael O’ Connell (SLZ)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Jeffrey Lewis  Farmers Insurance  

Elgin Lowe  Alameda County District Attorney  

Lt. Robert McManus  San Leandro Police Department  

Captain Luis Torres  San Leandro Police Department  

Jessica Vile  Chabot College 

Mark Marquez Hayward PD 

Clint Christoffersen Bay Area Criminal Lawyers, PC 

Sgt. Tayamen United States Air Force 

Sergeant First Class Elliot United States Army 

Giorgio Chavez East Bay Regional Park District 

 

30



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Building & Construction Trades   

Pathway:  Residential and Commercial Construction   

Cabinetry, Millwork, and Woodworking   

Instructor:  Bill Deslaurier (ROP), Michael Raytis (SLE)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Chris Floethe  Construction Craft Training (Retired)  

Nicolas Harvey  Bay Area Redwood  

Phil Johnson  ACCO Engineered Systems  

Jack Wilding  Mellow Mule Co.  

Mike Christian Red Point Builders 

Steve Sunburg RDO Vermeer Equipment 

  
  

  
  
 

31



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Hospitality, Tourism & Recreation   

Pathway:  Food Science, Dietetics & Nutrition  

Instructor:  Amanda Rose (ROP), Vicki Gilmour (CV)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Gary Freund  California State University, East Bay  
Dr. Thomas Padron  California State University, East Bay  

Carolyn Payne Caterer 

Mark Duesler Frontier Energy 

Kim Hudson Hudson Group CA 

 

32



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Information and Communications Technologies  

Pathway:  Networking and Information Support and Services   

Instructor:  Kent Doan (ROP), Louis Stanley (CV)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Chris Stoval  Tech Plus Consulting  

Gaspar Modelo-Howard  Palo Alto Networks, Inc.  

Chris Bagg Comcast 

Fabricio Gamba Cyber Security Engineer Lead/ Epic User 

Security Coordinator, Southern Illinois 

Healthcare 

  
  
 

33



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Health Science and Medical Technology  

Pathway:  Patient Care (Dental)  

Instructor:  Kathy O’ Brien (ROP)  
  

Advisory Members   

  

Name  Company  

Mayra Apodaca RDA Uptown Pediatric Dentistry 

Helena Martin RDS MOY Dental 

Candace Niccolson  Barniv Dental 

Susan So MD Castro Valley Orthodontics 

Nydia Tadeo  Dr. Rothi, DDS 

  

  
 

 

34



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Engineering and Architecture   

Pathway:  Engineering Design  

Instructor:  Lisa Holmes (CV), Jessica Porter (CV), Ian Lockey (HAY)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Linda Renteria  Casa Sanchez Foods  
Valentin Doering Astellas Gene Therapies 

Claire Luce Blue Origin 

Steven Trebotich Pulse Biosciences 

Patrick Mishreky UC Berkeley Engineering 

Jessica Beth Corr AutoDesk 

  
  
 

35



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Public Services  

Pathway:  Emergency Response  

Instructor:  Captain John Peters (ROP)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Samantha Barakat Royal Ambulance 

Deputy Chief Eric Vollmer City of Hayward Fire Dept. 

Chief Garrett Contreras City of Hayward Fire Dept. 

Chazz Griffiths Royal Ambulance 

  

  
 

36



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector: Arts, Media and Entertainment  

Pathway: Design, Visual, and Media Arts 

Instructor: Cameron Greenfield (CV), Larry Lavendel (MTE), Judy 

Okolie (TEN), Deborah Reinerio (SLE), Robert Jackson (SLZ) 
 

Advisory Members 

Name Company 
Shannon Hackley Shannon Leigh 

Steve Jones Plantain Studios 

Molly McCoy Molly McCoy Graphic Design 

 

37



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Marketing, Sales and Services   

Pathway:  Marketing & Entrepreneurship/Self Employment  

Instructor:  Maria Fuller (TEN), Rick Charles (HAY), Aaron Rosas (MTE), Christina 

Charlton (ARR), Laura Jagroop (SLE), Byron Thompson 

  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Dawn Fregosa  Collaborative Education Advisors.com  

Damon Johnson  Raised Marketing  

Quency Phillips  Que Agency  

Surina Piyadasa Dynamically Speaking 

Ruben Garza Alpha Energy Management 

 

38



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Health Science & Medical Technology  

Pathway:  Patient Care (Medical Careers)  

Instructor:  Heather Bystrom (ROP), Alysa Machado (ROP), Rowena 

Gamboa (ROP)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Dayan Zakrzewski FACES for the Future  

Peter Quiambao Director of Marketing, Healthcare MIMA 

Kelly Griest Kaiser Permanente 

  
  
 

39



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Arts, Media, and Entertainment  

Pathway:  Design, Visual and Media Arts  

Instructor:  Jeff Vendsel (CV), Mark Koehler (HAY), David Gurley (MTE),   

Jeff Baughman (ARR), Ken Gossett (SLZ)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Leisl Burns  Studio One Photography  

Lauren Finch  Academy of Arts University, of San Francisco  

Scot Tucker Photo Consultant, SF State 

Chloe Jackman Chloe Jackman Photography 

Bryan Gray Bryan Gray Photography 

Steve Babujak Babujak Photography 

Anthony Dimaano Freelance/James Logan 

  
 

40



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector: Health Science & Medical Technology 

Pathway: Patient Care [Sports Medicine] 

Instructor: Mikel Jackson (MTE), Quiana Porter-Wilson (HAY), Kris Bernard (ARR) 
 

Advisory Members 

Name Company 
Ysel Ganda Chiropractic Stockton Sports 

Dan Miller Chabot College Head Athletic Trainer 

Jeff Roberts Ohlone College Athletic Trainer 

Shawn Jenkins Stockton Sports Performance 

 

 

41



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector: Arts, Media, and Entertainment 

Pathway: Performing Arts 

Instructor: Tavis Kammet (HAY), Jennifer Dreyfus (EBA) 
 

Advisory Members 

Name Company 
Monica Dominguez Dance Live Dream Center 

Cody Poehnelt CSUEB Theatre 

Lizzie Flores CSUEB Theatre 

Benjamin Krantz Ben Krantz Studio 

 
 
 

 

42



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector: Arts, Media and Entertainment  

Pathway: Design, Visual and Media Arts 

Instructor: Tony Farley (SLE), Lance McVay (SLZ), Kevin Johnson (SLZ) 
 

Advisory Members 

Name Company 
Roy Miles Jr. Northstarr Media Group 

Jon Bolf Apple 
Alex Haynes Google, Event Production Design Engineer 
Rey Godoy Seaglass Production 
Charles Brown Berkeley IT Dept. 
Trinh Dinh Google ASG (You Tube Specialist) 

 

 
 

 

43



 
Advisory Members 

 

Sector:  Manufacturing & Product Development    

Pathway:  Welding & Materials Joining and Product Innovation and Design  

Instructor:  Barbara Juarez (ROP), Eduardo Nava (SLE), Kevin Buckley (BRK), 

Joseph Liu (BRK)  
  

Advisory Members  

Name  Company  

Alex Demirjian  Miller Electric   

Louis Quindlen  Laney College  

Henry Funcke Outreach/Rotation Coordinator 

Sheet Metal Workers’ Local 104 and Bay Area 

Industry Training Fund 

Ken Miller Business Agent/Organizer 

David Vetrano Chabot College 

Ron Sharp Technical Welding Supply 

 

44



 

  

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY:            Anthony Oum, Fiscal Services Administrator 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Disposal of Obsolete 

 or Surplus Items 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Per California Education Code 17545(a), it states that “The governing board of any 

school district may [for] … any personal property belonging to the district if the property 

is not required for school purposes … be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or 

if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for school use.”  

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

The attached list details personal property belonging to the Eden Area ROP that are 

past its useful life thereby making it no longer required for school purposes, be disposed 

of for the purpose of replacement and are unsatisfactory for they are no longer suitable 

for school use. 

 

The Superintendent hereby concludes that it is necessary to dispose these obsolete 

equipment and/or items. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

45



Asset # Description Asset # Description
10072 SMART Board SB580 (Screen) 11440 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
10073 SMART Board SB580 (Screen) 11442 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
10076 SMART Board SB580 (Screen) 11466 Dell Poweredge T 110 II (Server)
10080 SMART Board SB580 (Screen) 11467 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
10081 SMART Board SB580 (Screen) 11468 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
10597 SMART Board SB580 (Screen) 11469 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
10638 SMART Board (Screen) 11470 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11001 HP Proliant G4 (Server) 11472 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11273 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11475 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11280 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11476 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11289 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11477 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11290 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11478 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11294 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11486 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop)
11296 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11511 HP Envy (Laptop)
11298 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11513 HP Envy (Laptop)
11299 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11514 HP Envy (Laptop)
11301 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11520 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11303 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11521 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11305 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11522 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11307 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11523 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11310 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11525 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11311 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11526 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11312 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11527 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11315 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11528 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11319 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11529 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11320 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11530 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11323 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11531 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11324 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11532 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11327 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11533 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11330 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11534 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11331 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11536 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11332 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11537 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11337 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11538 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11338 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11539 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11356 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11540 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11364 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11541 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11373 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11542 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11374 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11543 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11378 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11544 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11382 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11545 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11383 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11546 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11384 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11547 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11387 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11549 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)
11393 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11550 HP Laserjet 700 M712 (Printer)
11401 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11743 Dell (Laptop)
11404 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11824 Dell (Laptop)
11410 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11837 Dell (Laptop)
11411 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11841 Dell (Laptop)
11412 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11842 Dell (Laptop)
11416 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11843 Dell (Laptop)
11421 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11845 Dell (Laptop)
11426 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 11846 Dell (Laptop)
11429 Dell Optiplex 7010 MT (Desktop) 12099 Apple iMac i5 (Desktop)

EAROP Personal Property 11032022 - Surplus46



 
 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY:   Brigitte Luna, Director of Educational Services 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Contract with 

American Stage Tours for Sophomore Tour Transportation for the 

2022-2023 School Year 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Each year the Eden Area ROP contracts for transportation services to bring students to 

the center for tours of programs and pathways.   

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

For the 2022-2023 school year the contract between American Stage Tours and the 

Eden Area ROP is outlined below: 

 

School  Tour Date Amount  

San Leandro High School  11/15/22     5,740.00 

Tennyson High School 11/17/22     7,050.00 

San Lorenzo High School 12/02/22     4,430.00 

Arroyo High School 12/09/22     5,740.00 

Hayward High School 01/20/23     8,360.00 

Castro Valley High School 01/26/23     8,360.00 

Mt. Eden High School 02/03/23     8,360.00 

 Total $48,040.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

47



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

09/26/22 Signed Contract

11/01/22 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $5,740.00

Transport Charge: $5,740.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Tuesday, November 15, 2022 Return Date: Tuesday, November 15, 2022

Pickup 

Location: 
San Leandro High School
2200 Bancroft Ave.
San Leandro

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 2-56 2-48 passenger

# Coaches: 4

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 09/30/22

Charter No. : 30177

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

48



The attached Charter 30177  in the amount of  $5,740.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30177

Friday, September 30, 2022

49



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30177

Friday, September 30, 2022

50



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

10/13/22 Signed Contract

11/03/22 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $7,050.00

Transport Charge: $7,050.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Thursday, November 17, 2022 Return Date: Thursday, November 17, 2022

Pickup 

Location: 
Tennyson High School
27035 Whitman St.
Hayward, CA  94544

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 4-56 1-48 passenger

# Coaches: 5

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 10/13/22

Charter No. : 30175

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

51



The attached Charter 30175  in the amount of  $6,915.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30175

Thursday, October 13, 2022

52



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date 09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30175

Thursday, October 13, 2022

53



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

09/26/22 Signed Contract

11/18/22 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $4,430.00

Transport Charge: $4,430.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Friday, December 2, 2022 Return Date: Friday, December 2, 2022

Pickup 

Location: 
San Lorenzo High School
50 East Lewelling Blvd.
San Lorenzo

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 2-56 1-48 passenger

# Coaches: 3

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 09/30/22

Charter No. : 30178

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

54



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30178

Friday, September 30, 2022

55



The attached Charter 30178  in the amount of  $4,430.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30178

Friday, September 30, 2022

56



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

09/28/22 Signed Contract

11/25/22 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $5,740.00

Transport Charge: $5,740.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Friday, December 9, 2022 Return Date: Friday, December 9, 2022

Pickup 

Location: 
Arroyo High School
15701 Lorenzo Ave.
San Lorenzo, CA   94580

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 2-56 2-48 passenger

# Coaches: 4

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 09/30/22

Charter No. : 30179

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

57



The attached Charter 30179  in the amount of  $5,740.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30179

Friday, September 30, 2022

58



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30179

Friday, September 30, 2022

59



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

09/28/22 Signed Contract

01/06/23 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $8,360.00

Transport Charge: $8,360.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Friday, January 20, 2023 Return Date: Friday, January 20, 2023

Pickup 

Location: 
Hayward High School  
1633 East Ave
Hayward, CA 94540 

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 3-56 & 3-48 passenger

# Coaches: 6

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 09/30/22

Charter No. : 30181

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

60



The attached Charter 30181  in the amount of  $8,360.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30181

Friday, September 30, 2022

61



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30181

Friday, September 30, 2022

62



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

09/28/22 Signed Contract

01/10/23 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $8,360.00

Transport Charge: $8,360.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Thursday, January 26, 2023 Return Date: Thursday, January 26, 2023

Pickup 

Location: 
Castro Valley High School
(Pick up in Loop off Mabel)
19400 Santa Maria Avenue
Castro Valley, CA 94546

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 3-56 3-48 passenger

# Coaches: 6

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 10/13/22

Charter No. : 30182

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

63



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30182

Thursday, October 13, 2022

64



The attached Charter 30182  in the amount of  $8,360.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30182

Thursday, October 13, 2022

65



 If you have not already done so, please send us a complete itinerary to insure the success of your trip. 

Please call if you have any questions.

Charter Party Authorized Signature Date
Charles Williams

Tour Coordinator

Due Dates AmountDescription Date Received

12/30/22 Signed Contract

01/13/23 Final Payment

Amount Paid $0.00

Balance Due $8,360.00

Transport Charge: $8,360.00

Thank you for selecting American Stage Tours for your upcoming trip.  We are committed to providing you with the very 

best service possible.  This Confirmation serves as your contract for your transportation needs shown below.  We must 

receive your  signed and dated copy of this confirmation by the due dates shown below. Please review the following 

information to confirm our understanding of the services we will provide.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

Group Name: Eden Area ROP

Group Leader: Johanna Lopez

Destination: Hayward, CA

Leave Date: Friday, February 03, 2023 Return Date: Friday, February 03, 2023

Pickup 

Location: 
Mt. Eden High School
2300 Panama St
Hayward, CA 94545
 

Spot Time: 8:15 am

Leave Time: 8:30 am

Destination 

Details: 
Eden Area ROP
26316 Hersperian Blvd.
Hayward, CA  94545

Equipment: 3-56 & 3-48 passenger

# Coaches: 6

Retn\Drop Time: 1:00 pm

Requested Driver: 

Charter Confirmation Confirmed: 10/24/22

Charter No. : 30180

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

66



COVID-19 WAIVER OF LIABILITY

WAIVER of LIABILITY.--The novel coronavirus, COVID-19, has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health 

Organization. COVID-19 is reported to be contagious. The state of medical knowledge is evolving, but the virus is believed to 

spread from person-to-person contact and possibley by contact with contaminated surfaces and objects or in the air. People 

reportedly can be infected and show no symptoms and therefore spread the disease. The exact methods of spread and contraction 

are unknown, and there is no known treatment, cure, or vaccine for COVID-19. Evidence has shown that COVID-19 can cause 

serious and potentially life threatening illness and even death. 

 

American Stage Tours cannot prevent you [or your child(ren)] from becoming exposed to, contracting, or spreading COVID-19 

while utilizing American Stage Tours services or premises. It is not possible to prevent against the presence of the disease. 

Therefore, if you choose to utilize American Stage Tours services and/or enter onto American Stage Tours premises you may be 

exposing yourself to and/or increasing your risk of contracting or spreading COVID-19. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF RISK.-- I have read and understood the above warning concerning COVID-19. I hereby choose to accept the 

risk of contracting COVID-19 for myself and/or my children in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and enter 

American Stage Tours premises. These services are of such value to me [and/or to my children,] that I accept the risk of being 

exposed to, contracting, and/or spreading COVID-19 in order to utilize American Stage Tours services and premises in person 

 

WAIVER OF LAWSUIT/LIABILITY.-- I hereby forever release and waive my right to bring suit against American Stage Tours 

and its owners, officers, directors, managers, officials, trustees, agents, employees, or other representatives in connection with 

exposure, infection, and/or spread of COVID-19 related to utilizing American Stage Tours services and premises. I understand 

that this waiver means I give up my right to bring any claims including for personal injuries, death, disease or property losses, or 

any other loss, including but not limited to claims of negligence and give up any claim I may have to seek damages, whether 

known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen. 

____________________________ _________________________

(Chartering / Tour Party Print Name) (Chartering / Tour Party Signed)

____________________________

(Date)

THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO TRIP DEPARTURE DATE.

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

Covid-19 Notice to All Charter Parties
Charter No. : 30180

Monday, October 24, 2022

67



The attached Charter 30180  in the amount of  $8,360.00  is forwarded for your review and approval. This charter has been 

scheduled according to the reflected information. If correct, please sign, date, and return this contract along with the required 

deposit.

RATES:

The charges for your charter bus is based on the original information. Additional hours not agreed upon at the time of booking can 

possibly be accommodated for an adjusted price.

DEPOSITS:

A deposit, if listed on your contract, is due within fourteen days of receiving the contract. Failure to send the deposit may result in a 

cancellation of the charter. The deposit is refundable if your coach is canceled 14 days in advance of your trip. 

CANCELLATIONS:

All cancellations must be submitted in writing. A change of departure date will be considered as a cancellation of the present 

charter.  Your deposit is refundable, if listed, if your charter is canceled at least 14 days prior to your Leave Date. Cancellations 

received less than 14 days prior to the scheduled departure date are liable for a charge equal to 40% of the charter fee. No refunds 

will be made for cancellations 7 days or less prior to Leave Date.

PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES:

Smoking, drugs, and alcohol are prohibited on all coaches. All animals except guide dogs are prohibited on the coaches.

School Pupil Activity Bus (S.P.A.B.) REGULATIONS:

The Department of Education and the California Highway Patrol has adopted certain regulations for the protection and safety of 

both the pupils and the driver. Drivers are limited to:

1. 16 consecutive hours on duty in any one day.

2. Of this 16 hours, a maximum of 10 hours may be actual driving hours.

3. Upon reaching a destination and the driver's total driving hours have been used, the driver must have a minimum 

of eight (8) hours off duty before local service may be performed or to begin an extended period of driving. American Stage 

recommends a minimum of ten (10) hours off duty.

OVERNIGHT CHARTER TRIPS:

On all trips requiring driver accommodations, the group is responsible for the driver's hotel room(s). Each driver must have his/her 

own hotel room. American Stage Tours strongly recommends housing the driver in the same hotel as the group whenever possible.

DISCLAIMER:

American Stage Tours is not liable for damage to or loss of baggage or other property. Baggage and all other property will be 

handled at the passenger's risk and only in an amount that can be conveniently carried in the storage areas of the charter coach.  Any 

damage to the coach by the charter party will be charged by the carrier to the charter party.  American Stage Tours reserves the 

right to substitute equipment if in our sole discretion a substitution is necessary.

I, the undersigned, do hereby agree to all policies outlined above.

________________________________________ ________________________________________

Charter Party Signature Date

Order Date  09/26/22

Phone: 510-293-2950
Fax: 

SalesRep: Charles Williams

Eden Area ROP

26316 Hesperian Blvd.

Hayward, CA  94545  

Johanna Lopez

1488 Soccer Court  

Concord, CA  94518-3850
Phone: 925-687-7705 

Fax:  925-685-5421

TCP 12504-B US DOT 253482

Website: www.americanstagetours.com          

Email: info@americanstagetours.com

S.P.A.B Terms and Conditions
Charter No. : 30180

Monday, October 24, 2022

68



 

INFORMATION ITEMS 



 
 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Manuschka Michaud, Principal  

SUBJECT:  ROP Pathway Review- Emergency Response  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

The state of California has identified 15 industry sectors. Each sector contains multiple 

career pathways in which to develop programs of study. It is up to individual school 

districts and the region’s corresponding colleges and businesses to conduct research 

into the needs of the industry and determine which sectors and careers can best serve 

the students, industry and community.  Pathways available vary by each district.  

 

Formerly, the pathway reviews were presented to the Governing Board under the title 

“CDE Course Review.”  The Eden Area ROP has renamed the CDE Course Reviews to 

Pathway Reviews to reflect the information more accurately being shared with the 

Board and to align with the current terminology used by the state.  Pathways reviews 

are presented to the Governing Board biennially. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION   
 

The Emergency Response pathway is under the Public Services sector. The Emergency 

Response pathway encompasses standards for designing student coursework in 

preparation for a number of careers in this field. The standards provide the foundation 

for further professional education and training at a postsecondary level, leading to 

certification and employment. By mastering these standards, students gain critical 

knowledge and skills through classroom and job-site experiences, simulations, and other 

learning modalities. Careers in this pathway include those in fire services, emergency 

medical services, wildland services, and emergency management. 

 

The attached pathway review is for the following program(s):  

First Responder (Fire Science/EMT) IP/IIP.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Information only 

69



 
Criteria for Course Approval and Expansion Annual Review 
For Class offerings 2021-2022 School Year 

  

SCHOOL DISTRICT:  EDEN AREA ROP LOCATION:   Eden Area ROP 

PATHWAY: Emergency Response  INSTRUCTOR(S): Capt. John Peters 
Course  Enrollment as of 21-22 Enrollment as of 20-21 Enrollment as of 19-20 

Name Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date 

First Responder (Fire Science/EMT) IP 35   48 39 

First Responder (Fire Science/EMT) IIP 14 N/A N/A 

Comments: 

 Required enrollment: Class enrollment maintained to sustain agreed master schedule for onsite and staffing. 

  YES  NO 

 Retention rate (Active Enrollment divided by Year-to-date Enrollment): 

Textbook: Essentials of Fire Fighting                                                                         Edition: 7th   

NO. YES NO  

1. X  ENROLLMENT – Course meets current or future labor market news. 

CLASS SCHEDULE: 

AM/PM 

SECTIONS PER 

YEAR: 

MINS PER  

SECTION: 

EXPECTED MINIMUM STUDENTS PER 

SECTION: 

2 (Center) 2 (Center) 3hrs Center 25+ 

2. X  AVAILABILITY OF QUALIFIED INSTRUCTOR – Qualified/ Credentialed Instructor teaching course. 

3. X  LEADERSHIP – Instructional leaders have sufficient time and resources to implement system 

improvements and work with their counterparts in other programs. 

4. X  CURRICULUM and INSTRUCTION – Students are provided with a strong experience in and 

understanding of all aspects of industry. 

5. X  SCHOOL-TO-CAREER AND CAREER PATHWAY DEVELOPMENT – Course is designed as part of a 

sequence of courses, career pathways, etc. 

6. X  ADVISORY COMMITTEE – The course has been reviewed and recommended by a pre-

established committee.     

 Yes, instructor was present at advisory meeting and minutes are on file at ROP 

 No, instructor was not present at advisory.  Program was represented, at a joint industrial, by 

ROP personnel.  Instructor MUST attend next advisory for program to meet compliance. 

7. X  LABOR MARKET NEEDS – Course meets current or future labor market needs.   

8. X  WORK BASED LEARNING – Course incorporates work-based learning opportunities (i.e.  guest 

speakers, field trips, mock interviews, or student organizations) 

9. 

 X 

COMMUNITY CLASSROOM AND COOPERATIVE VOCATIONAL EDUCATION – Course incorporates 

community classroom and cooperative vocational education (i.e., job training, internships, or 

job shadowing) 

10. X  JOB PLACEMENT/FURTHER EDUCATION OPTIONS – Course has potential for student job 

placement in entry-level positions or course prepares students for further training opportunities 

within the designed career pathway. 

11. X  FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT ACCOMMODATION  

   District will provide a facility which adequately accommodates the program.    

 EAROP will provide a facility which adequately accommodates the program. 

 District shares cost of equipment if program is cross utilized. 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS: 

 A-G Credit for UC  State and National Licensing or Certification 

   Community College Articulation  Strong Business or Industry Partnership  

  Dual Enrollment  Emerging Technologies - 

 
COMPLIANCE CATEGORIES  

 R – Retain 

Program: Program 

meets all criteria. 

 W - Watch Program: 

All criteria not met.  

See areas that need 

to be complied with. 

 P - Probation:  

Criteria is not being 

met.  Program in 

danger of 

suspension. 

 R – Reduce Program: 

Downsizing program. 

 S/T - Suspend/ 

Terminate program. 

70



  
 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board  

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

SUBJECT: Recognition of the Eden Area ROP Teacher of the Year 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Annually, ACOE hosts an elegant and inspirational award ceremony to honor a 

Teacher of the Year from each district and Regional Occupational Program.  The Eden 

Area ROP participates in the annual event which gives the opportunity to provide some 

well-deserved recognition for the teaching staff.  

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

The Eden Area ROP Teacher of the Year for 2022 is Daniel Pareja.   Mr. Pareja teaches 

Automotive Collision & Refinishing at the Eden Area ROP center.   

 

The Eden Area ROP is proud of Mr. Pareja for his commitment and dedication to the 

students and staff of the Eden Area ROP, as well as his contributions to public 

education.  

 

ACOE provided the Eden Area ROP with a short video clip that was shown during the 

Teacher of the Year event that will be presented at tonight’s meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Information only 

71



DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY:  Brigitte Luna, Director of Educational Services 

SUBJECT: Business Partners of the Year 

BACKGROUND 

The Eden Area ROP and school district programs are supported by our local business 

community in many ways. To honor those business members who have supported our 

programs and have contributed above and beyond during the school year, we honor 

our Business Partners of the Year.  Business Partners of the Year will be honored during 

our November Governing Board meeting. 

CURRENT SITUATION 

This year, the Eden Area ROP and the four school districts selected a total of seven 

Business Partners of the Year. These award winners have demonstrated a commitment 

to our students, staff, and programs by sharing their industry expertise, time, and talents. 

The following list of individuals are the Eden Area ROP’s Business Partners of the Year: 

NAME COMPANY NOMINATOR 

Tesa Dinio Abad Illumina Hayward USD (Internship) 

Ruben Castellon Home Depot Eden Area ROP (Construction) 

Terrell Keith Daniels Lots of Love Childcare 

Eden Area ROP 

(Careers in Ed) 

Dawn Deardorf Aura Catering Castro Valley USD 

Ron Sharp Technical Welding Supply LLC Eden Area ROP (Welding) 

Nikki West Kaiser Permanente San Lorenzo USD (Internships) 

Carole Wright MiMA LLC 

 San Leandro USD 

(Entrepreneurship) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Information only 

72



 
 

 

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent   

SUBJECT: First Reading of Governing Board Policies, Administrative 

Regulations, and Board Bylaw 

 

BACKGROUND    
 

By law, districts are mandated to adopt policies and administrative regulations to help 

ensure that districts are legally compliant.  New laws are passed by the legislature and 

congress every year and our policies can quickly become out-of-date.   The last 

thorough review of all of the Eden Area ROP Governing Board policies and 

administrative regulations occurred in the 2019-2020 school year.  

 

Since then, the Eden Area ROP has contracted with California School Boards 

Association (CSBA) to receive regular updates and suggested policy language for any 

additions, changes, or modifications to educational code that impacts policy.  Staff 

regularly review these updates and bring relevant changes to the board for their 

consideration throughout the year. 

 

The Eden Area ROP's policy development process includes a first reading at a public 

Governing Board meeting and a subsequent second reading and adoption for Board 

approval at a public Governing Board meeting.  

 

CURRENT SITUATION   
 

What follows is the first reading of updated board policies, administrative regulations, 

and Board Bylaw to reflect current law and regulations provided in CSBA’s quarterly 

update.   
 

NUMBER TYPE TITLE STATUS 

4119.1 

4219.1 

4319.1 

BP Civil and Legal Rights Revise 
 

4161.2 

4261.2 

4361.2 

AR Personal Leaves Revise 

4161.5 

4261.5 

4361.5 

AR Military Leave New  

  

6200 BP Adult Education Revise  

7150 BP Site Selection and Development Revise 

7150 AR Site Selection and Development Revise 

9100 BB Organization Revise 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Information only 

73



SUPERINTENDENT’S MEMO 
To: Eden Area ROP Governing Board 

From: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

Date: November 3, 2022 

Re: First Reading of Board Policies, Administrative Regulations and Board Bylaw 
 

 

Listed below is a summary of the changes being recommended to Board Policies (BP), Administrative 

Regulations (AR), and Board Bylaw (BB) for the consideration of the Board. 

 

Number Type Title Explanation of Change Status 
4119.1 

4219.1 

4319.1 

BP Civil and Legal Rights Policy updated to reflect NEW COURT 

DECISION (Kennedy v. Bremerton School 

District), in which the U.S. Supreme Court 

held that the district’s decision not to 

rehire a high school coach who refused 

to follow district direction to refrain from 

offering prayers openly in the presence 

of students after football games, 

violated the employee’s free exercise 

and free speech rights. Policy also 

updated to include types of retaliation 

prohibited when an employee is acting 

solely to protect a student engaged in 

conduct authorized by Education Code 

48907 (freedom of speech and press) or 

48950 (speech and other 

communication), and clarify that an 

employee is prohibited from using 

official authority status or influence to 

attempt to intimidate, threaten, coerce, 

or command another employee for the 

purpose of interfering with that 

employee’s right to disclose improper 

governmental activity. 

 

Revise 

4161.2 

4261.2 

4361.2 

AR Personal Leaves Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW 

(SB 294, 2021) which clarifies that leave 

of absence granted an employee to 

serve as an elected officer of an 

employee organization is in addition to 

other leaves to which the employee 

may be entitled by law or agreement 

and NEW LAW (AB 1033, 2021) which 

defines “parent” to include “parents-in-

law.” Regulation also updated to 

change heading “Legal Duties” to 

“Leave to Perform Legal Duties” and to 

make clarifying changes throughout. 

 

Revise 

4161.5 

4261.5 

4361.5 

AR Military Leave Regulation updated to include 

explanatory notes for the “Pension Plan 

Service Credit” and “Employment 

Status” sections, clarify language 

throughout, and delete dated and 

unnecessary material. 

New   

74



6200 BP Adult Education Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 

486, 2021) which repeals the 

authorization for districts in sparsely 

populated areas to participate in the 

adult education program administered 

by the county office of education. 

Policy also updated to (1) expand the 

Board’s philosophical statement, (2) 

move material regarding the district’s 

participation in a consortium to be with 

newly added material of similar content, 

(3) include that the Board may authorize 

an adult education student pursuing a 

high school diploma or a high school 

equivalency certificate, upon 

recommendation of the student’s adult 

school or noncredit program of 

attendance, to attend a community 

college during any session or term as a 

special part-time student, and (4) 

provide that a district may, with the 

approval of the County Superintendent 

of Schools and the Superintendent of 

Public Instruction, contract with another 

district to provide adult education 

instruction if the district has an adult 

school or classes but is unable to 

maintain that school or class(es) 

because of an inability to secure a 

teacher(s) or because of a lack of 

facilities. 

 

Revise 

 

7150 BP Site Selection and Development Policy updated to add material 

regarding the Governing Board’s 

obligations when evaluating property 

prior to acquiring a new school or an 

addition to an existing school site, and 

reflect NEW LAW (AB 819, 2021) which 

requires the district to post specified 

environmental review documents. 

 

Revise 

 

7150 AR Site Selection and Development Regulation updated to specify that the 

request for information to evaluate the 

safety of a proposed site be in writing, 

and reflect NEW LAW (AB 819, 2021) 

which requires the district to post 

specified environmental review 

documents. 

 

Revise 

9100 BB Organization Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 

486, 2021) which changes the date 

requirements for districts to hold their 

annual organizational meeting. 

 

Revise 

 

 

 

75



Policy 4119.1: Civil And Legal RightsPolicy 4119.1: Civil And Legal Rights Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/07/2020

The Governing Board believes that the personal life of an employee is not an appropriate concern of the Eden Area
Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP), except as it may directly relate to the employee's performance of
his/her duties.

An employee's personal beliefs and activities, including religious, political, cultural, social, or other beliefs or activities,
or lack thereof, shall not be grounds for disciplinary action against the employee, provided that the beliefs or
activities do not violate law, Governing Board policy, or administrative regulation. performance of the employee’s
duties.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)

(cf. 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 - Political Activities of Employees)

Eden Area ROP employees may engage in private, personal activities, including the exercise of their religious,
political, cultural, social or other beliefs or activities, during personal time including when employees are not on duty
or engaged in the supervision or instruction of students.

The Eden Area ROP shall make no inquiry concerning the personal values, attitudes, and beliefs of Eden Area ROP
employees or their sexual orientation or political or religious affiliations, beliefs, or opinions except when authorized
by law. In addition, no Eden Area ROP employee shall be required to provide critical appraisals of other individuals
with whom the employee has a familial relationship. However, the Eden Area ROP reserves the right to access any
publicly available information about any employee.

No employee shall be dismissed, suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, or otherwise retaliated against
solely for acting to protect a student engaged in conduct authorized under Education Code 48907 or 48950.

When necessary to protect the health, welfare, or safety of students and staff, school officials may search Eden Area
ROP property under an employee's control.

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)

Whistleblower Protection

An employee shall have the right to disclose to a Governing Board member, a school administrator, a member of the
County Board of Education, the County Superintendent of Schools, or the Superintendent of Public Instruction any
improper governmental activity by the Eden Area ROP or an Eden Area ROP employee that violates state or federal
law, is economically wasteful, or involves gross misconduct, incompetency, or inefficiency. When the employee has
reasonable cause to believe that the information discloses a violation of state or federal statute or a violation of or
noncompliance with a state or federal rule or regulation, he/she the employee has the right to disclose such
information to a government or law enforcement agency or to refuse to participate in any such activity. (Education
Code 44112, 44113; Labor Code 1102.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall prominently display in lettering larger than size 14 point type a list of
employees' rights and responsibilities under the whistleblower laws, including the telephone number of the
whistleblower hotline maintained by the office of the California Attorney General. (Labor Code 1102.7, 1102.8)

No employee shall use or attempt to use his/her official authority status or influence to intimidate, threaten, coerce,
or command, or attempt to intimidate, threaten, coerce, or command, another employee for the purpose of
interfering with that employee's right to disclose improper governmental activity. (Education Code 44113)

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

An employee who has disclosed improper governmental activity and believes that he/she has subsequently been

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

176



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

subjected to acts or attempted acts of reprisal have subsequently occurred shall file a written complaint in
accordance with the Eden Area ROP's complaint procedures. After filing a complaint with the Eden Area ROP, the
employee may also file a copy of the complaint with local law enforcement and/or seek civil law remedies against
the supervisor or administrator who retaliated or attempted to retaliate against him/herthe employee, in accordance
with Education Code 44114.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4144/4244/4344 - Complaints)

Protection Against Liability

No employee shall be liable for harm caused by his/her the employee’s act or omission when he/she is acting within
the scope of employment or Eden Area ROP responsibilities,; when the employee's act or omission is in conformity
with federal, or state law, and local laws, Eden Area ROP policy, or administrative regulation,; or when and the
employee's act or omission is in furtherance of an effort to control, discipline, expel, or suspend a student or to
maintain order or control in the classroom or school. (20 USC 7946)

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

The protection against liability shall not apply when: (20 USC 7946)

1. The employee acted with willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, recklessness, or a conscious, flagrant
indifference to rights or safety of the individual harmed.

2. The employee caused harm by operating a motor vehicle or other vehicle requiring license or insurance.

3. The employee was found by a court to have violated a federal or state civil rights law.

4. The employee was under the influence of alcohol or any drug at the time of the misconduct.

5. The misconduct constituted a crime of violence pursuant to 18 USC 16 or an act of terrorism for which the
employee has been convicted in a court.

6. The misconduct involved a sexual offense for which the employee has been convicted in a court.

8. The misconduct occurred during background investigations, or other actions, involved in the employee's hiring.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ytTLslshoozWGUAbNL6kKkgxQ==

Ed. Code 44040 Discrimination based on employee's appearance before certain boards or
committees

Ed. Code 44110-44114 Reporting by school employees of improper governmental activity

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 49091.24 Teacher rights to refuse evaluation/survey of personal life

Ed. Code 7050-7058 Political activities of school officers and employees

Gov. Code 12650-12656 False claims actions

Gov. Code 12940-12953 Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices

277



Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Gov. Code 3543.5 Interference with employee's rights prohibited

Gov. Code 815.3 Intentional torts

Gov. Code 820-823 Tort claims act

Gov. Code 825.6 Indemnification of public entity

Lab. Code 1102.5-1106 Whistleblower protections

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

18 USC 16 Crime of violence; definition

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 7941-7948 Teacher liability protection

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

U.S. Constitution Amendment 1, Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325

Court Decision Garcetti v. Ceballos (2006) 547 U.S. 410

Court Decision Hartnett v. Crosier (2012) 205 Cal.App.4th 685

Court Decision Johnson v. Poway Unified School District (2011) 658 F.3d 954

Court Decision O'Conner v. Ortega (1987) 480 U.S. 709

Court Decision Ohton v. CSU San Diego (2007) 56 Cal.Rptr.3d 111

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Office of the Attorney General -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/5qNslsh5DoKuytasYcv9khGiA==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/88k1jAFO5XTBbjmYVcdcJw==

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UfrrhTFRxuKf8z4GXGxqRg==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NCIIO1x8xFCdtQRniKVFQQ==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BA1WWI3efmslshPOPghyV4WnQ==

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/W6rvYg4mauU6zHehPSApOQ==

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Q7VGDQOk15wZTvNwk0Debw==

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EeABYSdzQDyR2ggLrMoiYQ==

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TlWOffKjwsfUBmmjHeh8ag==

378



3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/sXwUvhY3dZ4iQHheV60Qog==

3515 Campus Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/hPhZ71ILDCjHvLbslshBQvz3w==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10ZbnsLBD4kFslsh0MNykuzuA==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/huJBJf9Mb5p0jg2fOeadlA==

4040 Employee Use Of Technology -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/gDTVswWdASQ0j3VBn2zalg==

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NQSv4ZCezKjaSAplus9H4iFEg==

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XNvDKoMKzeSET7e8Iu7odQ==

4119.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/iUoZfku8qplusL9A2pCKzS3dQ==

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BnwnWmUC86HO6A1Pv8TC5Q==

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/plusx7quVYJcRgCQGf9vm10iQ==

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SKcZRAfchzUtahOLWjY0eQ==

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/VoRaslshttinP9GBVzFdsZLyQ==

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xm9M6Z8rEbtnHVJ9QTsk1w==

4136 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/I17IzduMHKo8put7kPOplusplusQ==

4136-E PDF(1) Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Cwab2RbcOnwuOXGouFMluw==

4144 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jMJUWhbRaLqEmvhJ3ML13A==

4144 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fMozsLcU1XQD2tEvpluslln9w==

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/p907xTHB0BRLxoplusxBqeAzw==

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QjZchBHjlo4MPVRpFGJCrA==

4219.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/L6xFcc0hdppUjb566xoOQQ==

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UnIzMtjoIy0fkBOcG4ZrMg==

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XzwwlkhAeQ80fj8mPTVmzw==

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/26N270Y773Xbx8NttX5STQ==

4232 Publication or Creation of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/HKsd8plusLyzRFYIbsZJjslshHMw==

4236 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YylaMaEJjnPdpqS7Ci4F0w==

479



4244 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/aQNldGubKpluslpfZH0rpluskBQQ==

4244 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/OjId2dnxGJxfwG6RsewdNg==

4319.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jtFNj01GCtv96WQS8QUQTQ==

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SbNNhECB0KlySslshQpsFOm7w==

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/FEDeJMdGgJmuugihzeFErA==

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/pB01E3Bmj2Kacu678Fl61g==

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4hQSTslshAUKRRgnPTBh0goyw==

4332 Publication or Creation of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/63bMplusgqDtJ4qX5xg6F8Xwg==

4336 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/J4cartGrEslshslsh5HVFg1ILREA==

4344 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/81islshPFcSeJaoFtslshzpmvsRg==

4344 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EpF4T2e1sCscykw5uttqlw==

9260 Legal Protection -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh3oGM4uPRVMq7XB4uslshlslshGg==

580



Policy 4219.1: Civil And Legal RightsPolicy 4219.1: Civil And Legal Rights Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/07/2020

The Governing Board believes that the personal life of an employee is not an appropriate concern of the Eden Area
Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP), except as it may directly relate to the employee's performance of
his/her duties.

An employee's personal beliefs and activities, including religious, political, cultural, social, or other beliefs or activities,
or lack thereof, shall not be grounds for disciplinary action against the employee, provided that the beliefs or
activities do not violate law, Governing Board policy, or administrative regulation. performance of the employee’s
duties.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)

(cf. 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 - Political Activities of Employees)

Eden Area ROP employees may engage in private, personal activities, including the exercise of their religious,
political, cultural, social or other beliefs or activities, during personal time including when employees are not on duty
or engaged in the supervision or instruction of students.

The Eden Area ROP shall make no inquiry concerning the personal values, attitudes, and beliefs of Eden Area ROP
employees or their sexual orientation or political or religious affiliations, beliefs, or opinions except when authorized
by law. In addition, no Eden Area ROP employee shall be required to provide critical appraisals of other individuals
with whom the employee has a familial relationship. However, the Eden Area ROP reserves the right to access any
publicly available information about any employee.

No employee shall be dismissed, suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, or otherwise retaliated against
solely for acting to protect a student engaged in conduct authorized under Education Code 48907 or 48950.

When necessary to protect the health, welfare, or safety of students and staff, school officials may search Eden Area
ROP property under an employee's control.

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)

Whistleblower Protection

An employee shall have the right to disclose to a Governing Board member, a school administrator, a member of the
County Board of Education, the County Superintendent of Schools, or the Superintendent of Public Instruction any
improper governmental activity by the Eden Area ROP or an Eden Area ROP employee that violates state or federal
law, is economically wasteful, or involves gross misconduct, incompetency, or inefficiency. When the employee has
reasonable cause to believe that the information discloses a violation of state or federal statute or a violation of or
noncompliance with a state or federal rule or regulation, he/she the employee has the right to disclose such
information to a government or law enforcement agency or to refuse to participate in any such activity. (Education
Code 44112, 44113; Labor Code 1102.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall prominently display in lettering larger than size 14 point type a list of
employees' rights and responsibilities under the whistleblower laws, including the telephone number of the
whistleblower hotline maintained by the office of the California Attorney General. (Labor Code 1102.7, 1102.8)

No employee shall use or attempt to use his/her official authority status or influence to intimidate, threaten, coerce,
or command, or attempt to intimidate, threaten, coerce, or command, another employee for the purpose of
interfering with that employee's right to disclose improper governmental activity. (Education Code 44113)

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

An employee who has disclosed improper governmental activity and believes that he/she has subsequently been

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

181



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

subjected to acts or attempted acts of reprisal have subsequently occurred shall file a written complaint in
accordance with the Eden Area ROP's complaint procedures. After filing a complaint with the Eden Area ROP, the
employee may also file a copy of the complaint with local law enforcement and/or seek civil law remedies against
the supervisor or administrator who retaliated or attempted to retaliate against him/herthe employee, in accordance
with Education Code 44114.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4144/4244/4344 - Complaints)

Protection Against Liability

No employee shall be liable for harm caused by his/her the employee’s act or omission when he/she is acting within
the scope of employment or Eden Area ROP responsibilities,; when the employee's act or omission is in conformity
with federal, or state law, and local laws, Eden Area ROP policy, or administrative regulation,; or when and the
employee's act or omission is in furtherance of an effort to control, discipline, expel, or suspend a student or to
maintain order or control in the classroom or school. (20 USC 7946)

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

The protection against liability shall not apply when: (20 USC 7946)

1. The employee acted with willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, recklessness, or a conscious, flagrant
indifference to rights or safety of the individual harmed.

2. The employee caused harm by operating a motor vehicle or other vehicle requiring license or insurance.

3. The employee was found by a court to have violated a federal or state civil rights law.

4. The employee was under the influence of alcohol or any drug at the time of the misconduct.

5. The misconduct constituted a crime of violence pursuant to 18 USC 16 or an act of terrorism for which the
employee has been convicted in a court.

6. The misconduct involved a sexual offense for which the employee has been convicted in a court.

8. The misconduct occurred during background investigations, or other actions, involved in the employee's hiring.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ytTLslshoozWGUAbNL6kKkgxQ==

Ed. Code 44040 Discrimination based on employee's appearance before certain boards or
committees

Ed. Code 44110-44114 Reporting by school employees of improper governmental activity

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 49091.24 Teacher rights to refuse evaluation/survey of personal life

Ed. Code 7050-7058 Political activities of school officers and employees

Gov. Code 12650-12656 False claims actions

Gov. Code 12940-12953 Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices

282



Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Gov. Code 3543.5 Interference with employee's rights prohibited

Gov. Code 815.3 Intentional torts

Gov. Code 820-823 Tort claims act

Gov. Code 825.6 Indemnification of public entity

Lab. Code 1102.5-1106 Whistleblower protections

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

18 USC 16 Crime of violence; definition

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 7941-7948 Teacher liability protection

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

U.S. Constitution Amendment 1, Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325

Court Decision Garcetti v. Ceballos (2006) 547 U.S. 410

Court Decision Hartnett v. Crosier (2012) 205 Cal.App.4th 685

Court Decision Johnson v. Poway Unified School District (2011) 658 F.3d 954

Court Decision O'Conner v. Ortega (1987) 480 U.S. 709

Court Decision Ohton v. CSU San Diego (2007) 56 Cal.Rptr.3d 111

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Office of the Attorney General -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/5qNslsh5DoKuytasYcv9khGiA==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/88k1jAFO5XTBbjmYVcdcJw==

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UfrrhTFRxuKf8z4GXGxqRg==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NCIIO1x8xFCdtQRniKVFQQ==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BA1WWI3efmslshPOPghyV4WnQ==

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/W6rvYg4mauU6zHehPSApOQ==

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Q7VGDQOk15wZTvNwk0Debw==

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EeABYSdzQDyR2ggLrMoiYQ==

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TlWOffKjwsfUBmmjHeh8ag==

383



3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/sXwUvhY3dZ4iQHheV60Qog==

3515 Campus Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/hPhZ71ILDCjHvLbslshBQvz3w==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10ZbnsLBD4kFslsh0MNykuzuA==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/huJBJf9Mb5p0jg2fOeadlA==

4040 Employee Use Of Technology -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/gDTVswWdASQ0j3VBn2zalg==

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NQSv4ZCezKjaSAplus9H4iFEg==

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XNvDKoMKzeSET7e8Iu7odQ==

4119.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/iUoZfku8qplusL9A2pCKzS3dQ==

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BnwnWmUC86HO6A1Pv8TC5Q==

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/plusx7quVYJcRgCQGf9vm10iQ==

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SKcZRAfchzUtahOLWjY0eQ==

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/VoRaslshttinP9GBVzFdsZLyQ==

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xm9M6Z8rEbtnHVJ9QTsk1w==

4136 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/I17IzduMHKo8put7kPOplusplusQ==

4136-E PDF(1) Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Cwab2RbcOnwuOXGouFMluw==

4144 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jMJUWhbRaLqEmvhJ3ML13A==

4144 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fMozsLcU1XQD2tEvpluslln9w==

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/p907xTHB0BRLxoplusxBqeAzw==

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QjZchBHjlo4MPVRpFGJCrA==

4219.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/L6xFcc0hdppUjb566xoOQQ==

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UnIzMtjoIy0fkBOcG4ZrMg==

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XzwwlkhAeQ80fj8mPTVmzw==

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/26N270Y773Xbx8NttX5STQ==

4232 Publication or Creation of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/HKsd8plusLyzRFYIbsZJjslshHMw==

4236 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YylaMaEJjnPdpqS7Ci4F0w==

484



4244 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/aQNldGubKpluslpfZH0rpluskBQQ==

4244 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/OjId2dnxGJxfwG6RsewdNg==

4319.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jtFNj01GCtv96WQS8QUQTQ==

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SbNNhECB0KlySslshQpsFOm7w==

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/FEDeJMdGgJmuugihzeFErA==

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/pB01E3Bmj2Kacu678Fl61g==

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4hQSTslshAUKRRgnPTBh0goyw==

4332 Publication or Creation of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/63bMplusgqDtJ4qX5xg6F8Xwg==

4336 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/J4cartGrEslshslsh5HVFg1ILREA==

4344 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/81islshPFcSeJaoFtslshzpmvsRg==

4344 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EpF4T2e1sCscykw5uttqlw==

9260 Legal Protection -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh3oGM4uPRVMq7XB4uslshlslshGg==

585



Policy 4319.1: Civil And Legal RightsPolicy 4319.1: Civil And Legal Rights Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/07/2020

The Governing Board believes that the personal life of an employee is not an appropriate concern of the Eden Area
Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP), except as it may directly relate to the employee's performance of
his/her duties.

An employee's personal beliefs and activities, including religious, political, cultural, social, or other beliefs or activities,
or lack thereof, shall not be grounds for disciplinary action against the employee, provided that the beliefs or
activities do not violate law, Governing Board policy, or administrative regulation. performance of the employee’s
duties.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)

(cf. 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 - Political Activities of Employees)

Eden Area ROP employees may engage in private, personal activities, including the exercise of their religious,
political, cultural, social or other beliefs or activities, during personal time including when employees are not on duty
or engaged in the supervision or instruction of students.

The Eden Area ROP shall make no inquiry concerning the personal values, attitudes, and beliefs of Eden Area ROP
employees or their sexual orientation or political or religious affiliations, beliefs, or opinions except when authorized
by law. In addition, no Eden Area ROP employee shall be required to provide critical appraisals of other individuals
with whom the employee has a familial relationship. However, the Eden Area ROP reserves the right to access any
publicly available information about any employee.

No employee shall be dismissed, suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, or otherwise retaliated against
solely for acting to protect a student engaged in conduct authorized under Education Code 48907 or 48950.

When necessary to protect the health, welfare, or safety of students and staff, school officials may search Eden Area
ROP property under an employee's control.

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)

Whistleblower Protection

An employee shall have the right to disclose to a Governing Board member, a school administrator, a member of the
County Board of Education, the County Superintendent of Schools, or the Superintendent of Public Instruction any
improper governmental activity by the Eden Area ROP or an Eden Area ROP employee that violates state or federal
law, is economically wasteful, or involves gross misconduct, incompetency, or inefficiency. When the employee has
reasonable cause to believe that the information discloses a violation of state or federal statute or a violation of or
noncompliance with a state or federal rule or regulation, he/she the employee has the right to disclose such
information to a government or law enforcement agency or to refuse to participate in any such activity. (Education
Code 44112, 44113; Labor Code 1102.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall prominently display in lettering larger than size 14 point type a list of
employees' rights and responsibilities under the whistleblower laws, including the telephone number of the
whistleblower hotline maintained by the office of the California Attorney General. (Labor Code 1102.7, 1102.8)

No employee shall use or attempt to use his/her official authority status or influence to intimidate, threaten, coerce,
or command, or attempt to intimidate, threaten, coerce, or command, another employee for the purpose of
interfering with that employee's right to disclose improper governmental activity. (Education Code 44113)

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

An employee who has disclosed improper governmental activity and believes that he/she has subsequently been

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

186



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

subjected to acts or attempted acts of reprisal have subsequently occurred shall file a written complaint in
accordance with the Eden Area ROP's complaint procedures. After filing a complaint with the Eden Area ROP, the
employee may also file a copy of the complaint with local law enforcement and/or seek civil law remedies against
the supervisor or administrator who retaliated or attempted to retaliate against him/herthe employee, in accordance
with Education Code 44114.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4144/4244/4344 - Complaints)

Protection Against Liability

No employee shall be liable for harm caused by his/her the employee’s act or omission when he/she is acting within
the scope of employment or Eden Area ROP responsibilities,; when the employee's act or omission is in conformity
with federal, or state law, and local laws, Eden Area ROP policy, or administrative regulation,; or when and the
employee's act or omission is in furtherance of an effort to control, discipline, expel, or suspend a student or to
maintain order or control in the classroom or school. (20 USC 7946)

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

The protection against liability shall not apply when: (20 USC 7946)

1. The employee acted with willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, recklessness, or a conscious, flagrant
indifference to rights or safety of the individual harmed.

2. The employee caused harm by operating a motor vehicle or other vehicle requiring license or insurance.

3. The employee was found by a court to have violated a federal or state civil rights law.

4. The employee was under the influence of alcohol or any drug at the time of the misconduct.

5. The misconduct constituted a crime of violence pursuant to 18 USC 16 or an act of terrorism for which the
employee has been convicted in a court.

6. The misconduct involved a sexual offense for which the employee has been convicted in a court.

8. The misconduct occurred during background investigations, or other actions, involved in the employee's hiring.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 1 Inalienable rights

Ed. Code 200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ytTLslshoozWGUAbNL6kKkgxQ==

Ed. Code 44040 Discrimination based on employee's appearance before certain boards or
committees

Ed. Code 44110-44114 Reporting by school employees of improper governmental activity

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 49091.24 Teacher rights to refuse evaluation/survey of personal life

Ed. Code 7050-7058 Political activities of school officers and employees

Gov. Code 12650-12656 False claims actions

Gov. Code 12940-12953 Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices

287



Gov. Code 3540.1 Public employment; definitions

Gov. Code 3543.5 Interference with employee's rights prohibited

Gov. Code 815.3 Intentional torts

Gov. Code 820-823 Tort claims act

Gov. Code 825.6 Indemnification of public entity

Lab. Code 1102.5-1106 Whistleblower protections

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

18 USC 16 Crime of violence; definition

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

20 USC 7941-7948 Teacher liability protection

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 USC 2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended

U.S. Constitution Amendment 1, Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Kennedy v. Bremerton (2022) 142 S.Ct. 2407

Court Decision New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325

Court Decision Garcetti v. Ceballos (2006) 547 U.S. 410

Court Decision Hartnett v. Crosier (2012) 205 Cal.App.4th 685

Court Decision Johnson v. Poway Unified School District (2011) 658 F.3d 954

Court Decision O'Conner v. Ortega (1987) 480 U.S. 709

Court Decision Ohton v. CSU San Diego (2007) 56 Cal.Rptr.3d 111

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Office of the Attorney General -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/5qNslsh5DoKuytasYcv9khGiA==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/88k1jAFO5XTBbjmYVcdcJw==

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UfrrhTFRxuKf8z4GXGxqRg==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NCIIO1x8xFCdtQRniKVFQQ==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BA1WWI3efmslshPOPghyV4WnQ==

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/W6rvYg4mauU6zHehPSApOQ==

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Q7VGDQOk15wZTvNwk0Debw==

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EeABYSdzQDyR2ggLrMoiYQ==

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TlWOffKjwsfUBmmjHeh8ag==

388



3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/sXwUvhY3dZ4iQHheV60Qog==

3515 Campus Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/hPhZ71ILDCjHvLbslshBQvz3w==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10ZbnsLBD4kFslsh0MNykuzuA==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/huJBJf9Mb5p0jg2fOeadlA==

4040 Employee Use Of Technology -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/gDTVswWdASQ0j3VBn2zalg==

4040-E PDF(1) Employee Use Of Technology -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NQSv4ZCezKjaSAplus9H4iFEg==

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XNvDKoMKzeSET7e8Iu7odQ==

4119.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/iUoZfku8qplusL9A2pCKzS3dQ==

4119.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BnwnWmUC86HO6A1Pv8TC5Q==

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/plusx7quVYJcRgCQGf9vm10iQ==

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SKcZRAfchzUtahOLWjY0eQ==

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/VoRaslshttinP9GBVzFdsZLyQ==

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xm9M6Z8rEbtnHVJ9QTsk1w==

4136 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/I17IzduMHKo8put7kPOplusplusQ==

4136-E PDF(1) Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Cwab2RbcOnwuOXGouFMluw==

4144 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jMJUWhbRaLqEmvhJ3ML13A==

4144 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fMozsLcU1XQD2tEvpluslln9w==

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/p907xTHB0BRLxoplusxBqeAzw==

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QjZchBHjlo4MPVRpFGJCrA==

4219.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/L6xFcc0hdppUjb566xoOQQ==

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UnIzMtjoIy0fkBOcG4ZrMg==

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XzwwlkhAeQ80fj8mPTVmzw==

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/26N270Y773Xbx8NttX5STQ==

4232 Publication or Creation of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/HKsd8plusLyzRFYIbsZJjslshHMw==

4236 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YylaMaEJjnPdpqS7Ci4F0w==

489



4244 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/aQNldGubKpluslpfZH0rpluskBQQ==

4244 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/OjId2dnxGJxfwG6RsewdNg==

4319.21 Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jtFNj01GCtv96WQS8QUQTQ==

4319.21-E PDF(1) Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SbNNhECB0KlySslshQpsFOm7w==

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/FEDeJMdGgJmuugihzeFErA==

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/pB01E3Bmj2Kacu678Fl61g==

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4hQSTslshAUKRRgnPTBh0goyw==

4332 Publication or Creation of Materials -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/63bMplusgqDtJ4qX5xg6F8Xwg==

4336 Nonschool Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/J4cartGrEslshslsh5HVFg1ILREA==

4344 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/81islshPFcSeJaoFtslshzpmvsRg==

4344 Complaints -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EpF4T2e1sCscykw5uttqlw==

9260 Legal Protection -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh3oGM4uPRVMq7XB4uslshlslshGg==

590



Regulation 4161.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4161.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/07/2020 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 03/03/2022

Personal leaves granted to Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) employees shall be used as
permitted in this administrative regulation, or other Governing Board-approved policy or Eden Area ROP regulation.

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any  protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner. (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to three days, or five days if out-of-state travel is required, upon the death of
any member of the employee's immediate family. No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary, nor shall
such leave be deducted from any other leave to which the employee is entitled. (Education Code 44985, 45194)

(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves)

Members of the an employee’s immediate family include: (Education Code 44985, 45194)

1. The mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, or grandchild of the employee or of
the employee's spouse

2. The employee's spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, brother, or sister

3. Any relative living in the employee's immediate household

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Personal Necessity

Employees may use a maximum of seven ten days of their accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during
each school year for reasons of personal necessity. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the limits
set by bereavement leave provisions (Education Code 44981, 45207)

2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family (Education Code 44981, 45207)

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5
(Education Code 44981; Labor Code 246.5)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or witness
under subpoena or other order (Education Code 45207)

5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee

65. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

191



Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or where for which the need for leave is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the
Superintendent or designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee of the need for the leave as soon as practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed Eden Area ROP absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

An employee may take time off work in order to: (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the Eden Area ROP office when
requesting leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees. (Education Code 44037)

A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received. (Education Code 44036)

An employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than a litigant or to respond to an
official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the connivance or
misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's regular
earnings and any witness fees received. (Education Code 44036)

Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

An employee may be absent from work in order to attend judicial proceedings related to a crime when the
employee who is a victim, of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of a such victim, of may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial
proceedings, if the crime is any of the following crimes: (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)

3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the Eden Area ROP attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is
advocating on behalf of the victim. (Labor Code 230.2)

The Eden Area ROP shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of
this leave. (Labor Code 230.2)

292



Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, who is a victim of or a crime that
caused physical injury or that caused mental injury with a threat of physical injury, or an employee whose immediate
family member, as defined, is deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities: (Labor Code
230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following: (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The Eden Area ROP shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor
Code 230, 230.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of their the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor
Code 230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by
the Eden Area ROP.  Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon
request.  (Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to: (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

393



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

2.  Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)
 
Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave.
Such leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental
entity authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the Eden Area ROP as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave.
The Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the
eligibility of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required
certification.  (Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/aVyer3HNWhenL24Ij43Z8w==

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

494



Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Leaves of absence and vacations; classified

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.2 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence, (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District,
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Department of Industrial Relations -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Lh5JVplusYhNJm5slshcgG07zsOQ==

Website California Federation of Teachers -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/6TJlnbikoQhGwsWiH4ztXQ==

Website California Public Employment Relations Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7Fndg3k626KwCb511Tslsh2ew==

595



Website California School Employees Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NOB1plusNOcLNRMHnggHE1slshjg==

Website California Teachers Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/w58tUBBtGnaF0rMUPIwN0g==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IORNQkSRCA9cCqs3OgrdZw==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fQAypGvWMEaBoqLbzsUZIQ==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R1SyYrIZ40DSa1c7mTns8w==

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zzr8ox1WUuCyBNJ5ACqUVQ==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/N2C6YsKYwhCRcCeraFplusCng==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TxPplushZopmplusFgI2Kv57ffhA==

4158 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xRjr63FE2ownEjtnHYRAZA==

4158 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/LZhSWDMRaTpQuhXaDvyd7w==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7plusW7uQZAz0yoM9vjFJplussMw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/43LAg0J4Hc77RETcpxlRJQ==

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eewP9MaTI3ITpPD5D3GF4A==

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xCNhX9a8KA87dmgWWIfEqQ==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Pd4UbqkJGPTTnAAfxxKDvw==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4A0tslshXyXIJvP6B6ft5plusnng==

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/0BkcCrcOcSUkdOhZoslshcG2A==

4258 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/HayBiDjLgktKoiCtftq6DA==

4258 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/cmgqYplusDcdygXnt8R27gsNQ==

4261 Leaves - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/liG4YQsRuj6F8elS9GG2kA==

4261 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Z5o7gMjXslshycN2SHIZ9BFRA==

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh8oMjzcJGtcyVciXusC0bA==

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/B7slshwn1CoslshNUHIdrTXnf3yA==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Jf1oae2HJ0qdxsBFnE9myQ==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10wlsSqx3Y703oUH6Lu9Bg==

696



4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tlDEw6WINi9spgzXcsOgiA==

4358 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/2IFPjn2lSp0plusrXYQ1IWEow==

4358 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SWIm4axjvRYRUVdRtpBjtw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G3y2Jy4MfTgEffD9BUvvfw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/d737EvzScSbfuUUjvZslshvAA==

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wuI5V6hXWcizpM6hydtxDg==

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zJdoLemo8XplusHHfSwbqeJVA==

797



Regulation 4261.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4261.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/07/2020 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 03/03/2022

Personal leaves granted to Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) employees shall be used as
permitted in this administrative regulation, or other Governing Board-approved policy or Eden Area ROP regulation.

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any  protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner. (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to three days, or five days if out-of-state travel is required, upon the death of
any member of the employee's immediate family. No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary, nor shall
such leave be deducted from any other leave to which the employee is entitled. (Education Code 44985, 45194)

(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves)

Members of the an employee’s immediate family include: (Education Code 44985, 45194)

1. The mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, or grandchild of the employee or of
the employee's spouse

2. The employee's spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, brother, or sister

3. Any relative living in the employee's immediate household

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Personal Necessity

Employees may use a maximum of seven ten days of their accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during
each school year for reasons of personal necessity. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the limits
set by bereavement leave provisions (Education Code 44981, 45207)

2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family (Education Code 44981, 45207)

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5
(Education Code 44981; Labor Code 246.5)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or witness
under subpoena or other order (Education Code 45207)

5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee

65. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

198



Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or where for which the need for leave is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the
Superintendent or designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee of the need for the leave as soon as practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed Eden Area ROP absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

An employee may take time off work in order to: (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the Eden Area ROP office when
requesting leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees. (Education Code 44037)

A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received. (Education Code 44036)

An employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than a litigant or to respond to an
official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the connivance or
misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's regular
earnings and any witness fees received. (Education Code 44036)

Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

An employee may be absent from work in order to attend judicial proceedings related to a crime when the
employee who is a victim, of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of a such victim, of may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial
proceedings, if the crime is any of the following crimes: (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)

3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the Eden Area ROP attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is
advocating on behalf of the victim. (Labor Code 230.2)

The Eden Area ROP shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of
this leave. (Labor Code 230.2)

299



Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, who is a victim of or a crime that
caused physical injury or that caused mental injury with a threat of physical injury, or an employee whose immediate
family member, as defined, is deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities: (Labor Code
230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following: (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The Eden Area ROP shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor
Code 230, 230.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of their the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor
Code 230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by
the Eden Area ROP.  Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon
request.  (Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to: (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

3100



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

2.  Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)
 
Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave.
Such leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental
entity authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the Eden Area ROP as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave.
The Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the
eligibility of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required
certification.  (Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/aVyer3HNWhenL24Ij43Z8w==

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

4101



Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Leaves of absence and vacations; classified

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.2 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence, (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District,
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Department of Industrial Relations -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Lh5JVplusYhNJm5slshcgG07zsOQ==

Website California Federation of Teachers -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/6TJlnbikoQhGwsWiH4ztXQ==

Website California Public Employment Relations Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7Fndg3k626KwCb511Tslsh2ew==

5102



Website California School Employees Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NOB1plusNOcLNRMHnggHE1slshjg==

Website California Teachers Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/w58tUBBtGnaF0rMUPIwN0g==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IORNQkSRCA9cCqs3OgrdZw==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fQAypGvWMEaBoqLbzsUZIQ==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R1SyYrIZ40DSa1c7mTns8w==

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zzr8ox1WUuCyBNJ5ACqUVQ==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/N2C6YsKYwhCRcCeraFplusCng==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TxPplushZopmplusFgI2Kv57ffhA==

4158 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xRjr63FE2ownEjtnHYRAZA==

4158 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/LZhSWDMRaTpQuhXaDvyd7w==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7plusW7uQZAz0yoM9vjFJplussMw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/43LAg0J4Hc77RETcpxlRJQ==

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eewP9MaTI3ITpPD5D3GF4A==

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xCNhX9a8KA87dmgWWIfEqQ==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Pd4UbqkJGPTTnAAfxxKDvw==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4A0tslshXyXIJvP6B6ft5plusnng==

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/0BkcCrcOcSUkdOhZoslshcG2A==

4258 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/HayBiDjLgktKoiCtftq6DA==

4258 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/cmgqYplusDcdygXnt8R27gsNQ==

4261 Leaves - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/liG4YQsRuj6F8elS9GG2kA==

4261 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Z5o7gMjXslshycN2SHIZ9BFRA==

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh8oMjzcJGtcyVciXusC0bA==

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/B7slshwn1CoslshNUHIdrTXnf3yA==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Jf1oae2HJ0qdxsBFnE9myQ==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10wlsSqx3Y703oUH6Lu9Bg==

6103



4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tlDEw6WINi9spgzXcsOgiA==

4358 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/2IFPjn2lSp0plusrXYQ1IWEow==

4358 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SWIm4axjvRYRUVdRtpBjtw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G3y2Jy4MfTgEffD9BUvvfw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/d737EvzScSbfuUUjvZslshvAA==

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wuI5V6hXWcizpM6hydtxDg==

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zJdoLemo8XplusHHfSwbqeJVA==

7104



Regulation 4361.2: Personal LeavesRegulation 4361.2: Personal Leaves Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/07/2020 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 03/03/2022

Personal leaves granted to Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) employees shall be used as
permitted in this administrative regulation, or other Governing Board-approved policy or Eden Area ROP regulation.

For the purpose of any personal leave offered pursuant to state law, a registered domestic partner shall have the
same rights, protections, and benefits as a spouse and any  protections provided to a spouse's child shall also apply to
a child of a registered domestic partner. (Family Code 297.5)

Whenever possible, employees shall request personal leaves in advance and prepare suitable instructions, including
lesson plans as applicable, for a substitute employee.

(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)

Bereavement

Employees are entitled to a leave of up to three days, or five days if out-of-state travel is required, upon the death of
any member of the employee's immediate family. No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary, nor shall
such leave be deducted from any other leave to which the employee is entitled. (Education Code 44985, 45194)

(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves)

Members of the an employee’s immediate family include: (Education Code 44985, 45194)

1. The mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, or grandchild of the employee or of
the employee's spouse

2. The employee's spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, brother, or sister

3. Any relative living in the employee's immediate household

At the employee's request, bereavement leave may be extended under personal necessity leave provisions as
provided in the section "Personal Necessity" below. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

Personal Necessity

Employees may use a maximum of seven ten days of their accrued personal illness/injury leave (sick leave) during
each school year for reasons of personal necessity. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

Acceptable reasons for the use of personal necessity leave include:

1. Death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the limits
set by bereavement leave provisions (Education Code 44981, 45207)

2. An accident involving the employee or the employee's property, or the person or property of a member of the
employee's immediate family (Education Code 44981, 45207)

3. Illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the employee's family, as defined in Labor Code 245.5
(Education Code 44981; Labor Code 246.5)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)

4. A classified employee's appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or witness
under subpoena or other order (Education Code 45207)

5. Fire, flood, or other immediate danger to the home of the employee

65. Personal business of a serious nature which the employee cannot disregard

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1105



Leave for personal necessity may be allowed for other reasons at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.
However, personal necessity leave shall not be granted for purposes of personal convenience, for the extension of a
holiday or vacation, or for matters which can be taken care of outside of working hours. The Superintendent or
designee shall have final discretion as to whether a request reflects personal necessity.

Advance permission shall not be required of an employee in any case involving the death of a member of the
employee's immediate family, an accident involving the employee's person or property or the person or property of a
member of the employee's immediate family, or the illness, preventive care, or other need of a member of the
employee's family.  (Education Code 44981, 45207)

For any leave that is planned, or where for which the need for leave is foreseeable, an employee shall notify the
Superintendent or designee in advance. In all other circumstances, the employee shall notify the Superintendent or
designee of the need for the leave as soon as practicable.

After any absence due to personal necessity, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a completed and
signed Eden Area ROP absence form to the employee's immediate supervisor.

Leave to Perform Legal Duties

An employee may take time off work in order to: (Labor Code 230)

1. Serve on an inquest jury or trial jury

2. Comply with a subpoena or other court order to appear as a witness

Notices, summons, and subpoenas for court appearances shall be submitted to the Eden Area ROP office when
requesting leave.

A classified employee called for jury duty shall be granted leave with pay up to the amount of the difference
between the employee's regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees. (Education Code 44037)

A certificated employee who is called for jury duty also shall be granted leave with pay up to the difference between
the employee's regular earnings and any jury fees received. (Education Code 44036)

An employee shall be granted leave with pay to appear in court as a witness other than a litigant or to respond to an
official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the connivance or
misconduct of the employee. Such an employee shall receive the difference between the employee's regular
earnings and any witness fees received. (Education Code 44036)

Leaves for Crime Victims for Judicial Proceedings

An employee may be absent from work in order to attend judicial proceedings related to a crime when the
employee who is a victim, of a crime or an immediate family member, registered domestic partner, or child of a
registered domestic partner of a such victim, of may be absent from work in order to attend related judicial
proceedings, if the crime is any of the following crimes: (Labor Code 230.2)

1. A violent felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c)

2. A serious felony as defined in Penal Code 1192.7(c)

3. A felony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement

For these purposes, the employee may use vacation, personal leave, personal illness/injury leave, unpaid leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee. (Labor Code 230.2)

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give the Superintendent or designee a copy of the notice of each
scheduled proceeding that is provided by the responsible agency, unless advance notice is not feasible. When
advance notice is not feasible or an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall, within a reasonable time after
the absence, provide documentation evidencing the judicial proceeding from the court or government agency setting
the hearing, the Eden Area ROP attorney or prosecuting attorney's office, or the victim/witness office that is
advocating on behalf of the victim. (Labor Code 230.2)

The Eden Area ROP shall keep confidential any records pertaining to the employee's absence from work by reason of
this leave. (Labor Code 230.2)

2106



Leaves for Victims of Crime or Abuse

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, who is a victim of or a crime that
caused physical injury or that caused mental injury with a threat of physical injury, or an employee whose immediate
family member, as defined, is deceased as the direct result of a crime may use vacation, sick leave, personal leave, or
compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee to attend to the following activities: (Labor Code
230, 230.1, 246.5)

1. Obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining
order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or the employee's
child
 

2. Seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse
 

3. Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim services organization or
agency as a result of the crime or abuse
 

4. Obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse
 

5. Participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or abuse, including
temporary or permanent relocation

Prior to taking time off, an employee shall give reasonable notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless advance
notice is not feasible. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide, within a reasonable period
of time, certification of the absence in the form of any of the following: (Labor Code 230, 230.1)

1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim
 

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or abuse, or other
evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has appeared in court
 

3. Documentation from a domestic violence or sexual assault counselor as defined in Evidence Code 1037.1 or
1035.2, licensed medical professional or health care provider, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in
victimization from the crime or abuse
 

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf
certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under Labor Code 230 or 230.1

The Eden Area ROP shall maintain the confidentiality of such an employee to the extent authorized by law.  (Labor
Code 230, 230.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform employees of their the rights provided employees pursuant to Labor
Code 230 and 230.1 using a form developed by the Labor Commissioner or a substantially similar form developed by
the Eden Area ROP.  Such information shall be provided to new employees upon hire and to other employees upon
request.  (Labor Code 230.1)

Personal Leave for Child-Related Activities

Any employee who is a parent/guardian of one or more children of an age to attend any of grades K-12 or a program
offered by a licensed child care provider may use up to 40 hours of personal leave, vacation, or compensatory time
off each school year in order to: (Labor Code 230.8)

1. Find, enroll, or reenroll a child in a school or with a licensed child care provider or to participate in activities of
the school or child care provider, provided the employee gives reasonable advance notice of the absence. Time
off for this purpose shall not exceed eight hours in any calendar month.
 

3107



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

2.  Address a school or child care emergency, provided the employee gives notice. An emergency exists when the
child cannot remain in school or with a child care provider due to one of the following circumstances:
 

a. A request by the school or child care provider that the child be picked up
 

b. An attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires that
the child be picked up from the school or child care provider
 

c. Behavioral or discipline problems
 

d. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding planned holidays
 

e. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood

For purposes of this leave, parent/guardian includes a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent, grandparent, or
person who stands in loco parentis to a child.  (Labor Code 230.8)
 
Spouse on Leave from Military Deployment

An employee who works an average of 20 hours or more per week and whose spouse is a member of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or reserves may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave during a period that the
employee's spouse is on leave from deployment during a military conflict, as defined in Military and Veterans Code
395.10.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Within two business days of receiving official notice that the employee's spouse will be on leave from deployment,
the employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the intention to take the leave. The
employee shall submit written documentation certifying that the employee's spouse will be on leave from
deployment during the time that the leave is requested.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.10)

Leave for Emergency Duty

An employee may take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or
emergency rescue personnel.  (Labor Code 230.3)

Any employee who performs duty as a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel
shall be permitted to take temporary leaves of absence, not to exceed an aggregate total of 14 days per calendar
year, for the purpose of engaging in fire, law enforcement, or emergency rescue training.  (Labor Code 230.4)

Civil Air Patrol Leave

An employee may take up to 10 days of unpaid leave per calendar year, beyond any leave otherwise available to the
employee, to respond to an emergency operational mission of the California Civil Air Patrol, provided that the
employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least a 90-day period immediately preceding the leave.
Such leaves shall not exceed three days for a single mission, unless an extension is granted by the governmental
entity authorizing the mission and is approved by the Superintendent or designee.  (Labor Code 1501, 1503)

The employee shall give the Eden Area ROP as much advance notice as possible of the intended dates of the leave.
The Superintendent or designee may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the
eligibility of the employee for the leave and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required
certification.  (Labor Code 1503)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/aVyer3HNWhenL24Ij43Z8w==

Ed. Code 44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances

4108



Ed. Code 44963 Power to grant leaves of absence; certificated

Ed. Code 44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity

Ed. Code 44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family; certificated

Ed. Code 44987 Service as officer of employee organization; certificated

Ed. Code 44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.

Ed. Code 45190 Leaves of absence and vacations; classified

Ed. Code 45194 Bereavement leave of absence; classified

Ed. Code 45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

Ed. Code 45207 Personal necessity; classified

Ed. Code 45210 Service as officer of employee organization; classified

Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Evid. Code 1035.2 Sex assault counselor; definition

Evid. Code 1037.1 Domestic violence counselor; definition

Fam. Code 297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.2 California Family Rights Act

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Lab. Code 1500-1507 Civil Air Patrol leave

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Lab. Code 230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

Lab. Code 230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

Lab. Code 230.8 Time off to visit child's school

Lab. Code 233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner

Lab. Code 234 Absence control policy

Lab. Code 246.5 Paid sick days; purposes for use

M&V Code 395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment

Pen. Code 1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Pen. Code 667.5 Prior prison terms; enhancement of prison terms

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

29 USC 2601-2654 Family Care and Medical Leave Act

42 USC 2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence, (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Public Employment Relations Board Decision Berkeley Council of Classified Employees v. Berkeley Unified School District,
(2008) PERB Decision No. 1954

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Department of Industrial Relations -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Lh5JVplusYhNJm5slshcgG07zsOQ==

Website California Federation of Teachers -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/6TJlnbikoQhGwsWiH4ztXQ==

Website California Public Employment Relations Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7Fndg3k626KwCb511Tslsh2ew==

5109



Website California School Employees Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NOB1plusNOcLNRMHnggHE1slshjg==

Website California Teachers Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/w58tUBBtGnaF0rMUPIwN0g==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IORNQkSRCA9cCqs3OgrdZw==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fQAypGvWMEaBoqLbzsUZIQ==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R1SyYrIZ40DSa1c7mTns8w==

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zzr8ox1WUuCyBNJ5ACqUVQ==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/N2C6YsKYwhCRcCeraFplusCng==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TxPplushZopmplusFgI2Kv57ffhA==

4158 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xRjr63FE2ownEjtnHYRAZA==

4158 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/LZhSWDMRaTpQuhXaDvyd7w==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7plusW7uQZAz0yoM9vjFJplussMw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/43LAg0J4Hc77RETcpxlRJQ==

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eewP9MaTI3ITpPD5D3GF4A==

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xCNhX9a8KA87dmgWWIfEqQ==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Pd4UbqkJGPTTnAAfxxKDvw==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4A0tslshXyXIJvP6B6ft5plusnng==

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/0BkcCrcOcSUkdOhZoslshcG2A==

4258 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/HayBiDjLgktKoiCtftq6DA==

4258 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/cmgqYplusDcdygXnt8R27gsNQ==

4261 Leaves - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/liG4YQsRuj6F8elS9GG2kA==

4261 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Z5o7gMjXslshycN2SHIZ9BFRA==

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh8oMjzcJGtcyVciXusC0bA==

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/B7slshwn1CoslshNUHIdrTXnf3yA==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Jf1oae2HJ0qdxsBFnE9myQ==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10wlsSqx3Y703oUH6Lu9Bg==

6110



4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tlDEw6WINi9spgzXcsOgiA==

4358 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/2IFPjn2lSp0plusrXYQ1IWEow==

4358 Employee Security -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/SWIm4axjvRYRUVdRtpBjtw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G3y2Jy4MfTgEffD9BUvvfw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/d737EvzScSbfuUUjvZslshvAA==

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wuI5V6hXWcizpM6hydtxDg==

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zJdoLemo8XplusHHfSwbqeJVA==

7111



Regulation 4161.5: Military LeaveRegulation 4161.5: Military Leave Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law to employees performing military
duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis in a uniformed service, including active duty, active duty for training, initial
active duty for training, inactive duty training, full-time National Guard duty, examination to determine fitness for
duty, and performance of funeral honors duty. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.01,
395.02, 395.05, 395.1, 395.2, 395.9; 38 USC 4301, 4303, 4316)

Any Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) employee who needs to be absent from the Eden
Area ROP service to fulfill military service shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the Superintendent or
designee, unless the giving of such notice is precluded by military necessity or is otherwise impossible or
unreasonable.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.85, 1002.86)

Salary/Compensation

The Eden Area ROP shall pay an employee's salary or compensation for the first 30 days of any one absence for
military leave or during one fiscal year, under any of the following conditions:

1. Active Military Training or Exercises:  The employee is granted a temporary military leave of absence to
engage in ordered military duty for purposes of active military training, encampment, naval cruises, special
exercises, or like activity as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States Armed Forces,
National Guard, or Naval Militia, provided that:  (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395, 395.01)
 

a. The employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least one year immediately prior to the
day the military leave begins.
 

b. The ordered duty does not exceed 180 days, including time involved in going to and returning from such
duty.
 

2. Active Military Duty:  The employee is on military leave, other than a temporary military leave, to engage in
active military duty as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States Armed Forces, the National
Guard, or the Naval Militia, provided that the employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least
one year immediately prior to the day the military leave begins.  (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395.02)
 

3. War or Other Emergency:  The employee, however long employed by the Eden Area ROP, is a member of the
National Guard who is engaged in military or naval duty during a state of extreme emergency as declared by
the Governor, or during such time as the National Guard may be on active duty in situations described in
Military and Veterans Code 146, including travel time to and from such duty.  (Military and Veterans Code
395.05)

In determining the length of Eden Area ROP employment when necessary to determine eligibility for compensation
for military leave, all recognized military service performed during and prior to Eden Area ROP employment shall be
included.

For classified employees, 30 days' compensation shall be one month's salary. For certificated employees, 30 days'
compensation shall be one-tenth of the employee's annual salary.   (Education Code 45059)

During the period of military leave, an employee may request to use any vacation or similar paid leave accrued
before the commencement of the military leave in order to continue receiving compensation for the employee's
employment with the Eden Area ROP. The Eden Area ROP shall not require the employee to use such leave.  (38
USC 4316; 20 CFR 1002.153)

Benefits

An employee may elect to continue health plan coverage during the military leave. The maximum period of coverage
for the employee and any dependents shall be either 24 months from the beginning of the leave or until the day after
the employee fails to apply for or return to employment, whichever is less.  (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.164)

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1112



An employee on military leave may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to the extent
that other employees on leave are so required.  (38 USC 4316)

An employee absent for 30 days or fewer shall not be required to pay more than the employee share for such
coverage. An employee absent for 31 days or more may be required to pay not more than 102 percent of the full
premium under the plan.  (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.166)

Any employee called into active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a United States
Military Reserve organization shall receive, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount of the employee's
military pay and the amount the employee would have received from the Eden Area ROP and all benefits that the
employee would have received had the employee not been called to active military duty, unless the benefits are
prohibited or limited by vendor contracts.  (Education Code 44018)

Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual

An employee on temporary military leave under the conditions described in Item #1 in the section entitled
"Salary/Compensation" above, shall continue to accrue the same vacation, sick leave, and holiday privileges to which
the employee would otherwise be entitled if not absent.  (Military and Veterans Code 395)

An employee on military leave who is serving in active duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations
military or police operation shall not accrue sick leave or vacation leave during the period of such leave.  (Military and
Veterans Code 395.1)

However, an employee who is a National Guard member on active duty as described in Item #3 in the section
entitled "Salary/Compensation" above, shall not suffer any loss or diminution of vacation or holiday privileges
because of the employee's leave of absence.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

Pension Plan Service Credit

Pension plan service credit and vesting shall continue during an employee's military leave as though no break in
service had occurred. Payment of employer and employee contributions shall be made in accordance with law for
members of the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System.  (Education Code
22850-22856; Government Code 20990-21013)

Employment Status

Absence for military leave shall not affect the classification of any employee. In the case of a probationary employee,
the period of such absence shall not count as part of service required to obtain permanent status, but shall not be
construed as a break in the continuity of service for any purpose.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans
Code 395; 20 CFR 1002.149)

Reinstatement Rights

At the conclusion of the military duty, an employee shall be promptly reinstated in the position held at the beginning
of the leave, at the salary to which the employee would otherwise have been entitled, except under the conditions
noted below in this section.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.2; 38 USC 4304, 4313;
20 CFR 1002.180-1002.181)

Any employee who performs active military duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations military or
police operation has a right to return to the position held prior to the military service, during terminal leave prior to
the employee's discharge, separation, or release from the armed forces, or within six months of the employee's
release, separation, honorable discharge, or placement on inactive duty. Reinstatement rights shall not be extended
to any such employee who fails to return within 12 months after the first date upon which the employee could
terminate or could cause to have terminated active service.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code
395.1)

When an employee has been on military leave for reasons other than war or national emergency, the time frame for
seeking reinstatement shall depend on the length of military service as follows:  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.115,
1002.118)

1. For a leave of 30 days or fewer, the employee shall report for duty no later than the beginning of the first full
work day following the completion of the military service plus a period of eight hours of rest following a period

2113



for safe transportation to the employee's residence.
 

2. For a leave of 31-180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for reinstatement not
later than 14 days after the completion of military service.
 

3. For a leave of more than 180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for reinstatement
within 90 days after the completion of military service.

Where an employee's reporting or application for reinstatement within the periods specified in Items #1 and #2
above is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the employee, the report or application shall be made as
soon as possible after the expiration of the period.  In the case of Items #2 and #3 where an application is required,
the employee's application may be made orally or in writing and need not follow any particular format.  (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.115, 1002.117, 1002.118)

An employee who is hospitalized for, or convalescing from, an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated during the
performance of military service shall report for duty or submit an application for reinstatement at the end of the
period that is necessary to recover from such illness or injury, but no more than two years after the completion of
military service unless circumstances beyond the employee's control make reporting within the two-year period
impossible or unreasonable.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.116)

Upon receiving an application for reinstatement, the Superintendent or designee shall reinstate the employee as
soon as practicable under the circumstances of the case, but within a time period not to exceed two weeks, absent
unusual circumstances. (20 CFR 1002.181)

If the employee's previous position has been abolished, the Eden Area ROP shall reinstate the employee in a position
of like seniority, status, and pay, if such position exists, or to a comparable vacant position for which the employee is
qualified.  (Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.1; 38 USC 4313; 20 CFR 1002.192)

An employee who fails to report or apply for reinstatement within the appropriate period does not automatically
forfeit the entitlement to reinstatement but shall be subject to the Eden Area ROP's rules and/or practices governing
unexcused absences.  (38 USC 4312)

The Superintendent or designee may elect not to reinstate an employee following military leave if any of the
following conditions exists:

1. The Eden Area ROP's circumstances have so changed as to make such re-employment impossible or
unreasonable, such as a reduction in force that would have included the employee.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR
1002.139)
 

2. The accommodation, training, or effort described in 38 USC 4313(a)(3), (a)(4), or (b)(2)(B) would impose an
undue hardship on the Eden Area ROP as defined in 20 CFR 1002.5 or 1002.198.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR
1002.139)
 

3. The employee's position was for a brief, nonrecurrent period and there was no reasonable expectation that
such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)
 

4. The employee's cumulative length of absence and length of all previous military leave while employed with the
Eden Area ROP exceeds five years, excluding those training and service obligations specified in 38 USC
4312(c).  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.99-1002.103)
 

5. The employee was separated from military service with a disqualifying discharge or under other than
honorable conditions.   (Military and Veterans Code 395.1; 20 USC 4304, 4312; 20 CFR 1002.134-1002.138)

Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees a notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations of
employees granted military leave and of the Eden Area ROP under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 USC 4301-4334.  (38 USC 4334)

This requirement may be met by posting the notice where the Eden Area ROP customarily places notices for
employees.  (38 USC 4334)

3114



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Gov. Code 18540 Definition of armed forces

Gov. Code 18540.3 Recognized military service

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

M&V Code 146 Events justifying calling of militia into active service

M&V Code 389 Definitions; temporary military leave

M&V Code 394 Nondiscrimination based on military service

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 CFR 1002.1-1002.314 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 18 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 178 (1951)

Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 924 (1978)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 77 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 56 (1994)

Court Decision Bowers v. San Buenaventura (1977) 75 Cal. App.3d 65

Court Decision Wright v. City of Santa Clara (1989) 213 Cal. App.3d 1503

U.S. Department of Labor Publication A Non-Technical Resource Guide to the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), rev. April 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YYN378LPYzj3jvdJKbslshUUQ==

Website U.S. Department of Labor, USERRA -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PNGGXVyMj8Zx0NMplus6qWUVA==

Website National School Boards Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PGLybcP29yufJSot5FEGJg==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IORNQkSRCA9cCqs3OgrdZw==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10ZbnsLBD4kFslsh0MNykuzuA==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/huJBJf9Mb5p0jg2fOeadlA==

4032 Reasonable Accommodation -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eK452M5kQnYGhD40xSsBPA==

4115



4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fQAypGvWMEaBoqLbzsUZIQ==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R1SyYrIZ40DSa1c7mTns8w==

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zzr8ox1WUuCyBNJ5ACqUVQ==

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/1yAFPiEhUv1D8UmvXlwsUw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7plusW7uQZAz0yoM9vjFJplussMw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/43LAg0J4Hc77RETcpxlRJQ==

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eewP9MaTI3ITpPD5D3GF4A==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Pd4UbqkJGPTTnAAfxxKDvw==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4A0tslshXyXIJvP6B6ft5plusnng==

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/0BkcCrcOcSUkdOhZoslshcG2A==

4261 Leaves - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/liG4YQsRuj6F8elS9GG2kA==

4261 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Z5o7gMjXslshycN2SHIZ9BFRA==

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh8oMjzcJGtcyVciXusC0bA==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Jf1oae2HJ0qdxsBFnE9myQ==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10wlsSqx3Y703oUH6Lu9Bg==

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tlDEw6WINi9spgzXcsOgiA==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G3y2Jy4MfTgEffD9BUvvfw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/d737EvzScSbfuUUjvZslshvAA==

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wuI5V6hXWcizpM6hydtxDg==

5116



Regulation 4261.5: Military LeaveRegulation 4261.5: Military Leave Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law to employees performing military
duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis in a uniformed service, including active duty, active duty for training, initial
active duty for training, inactive duty training, full-time National Guard duty, examination to determine fitness for
duty, and performance of funeral honors duty. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.01,
395.02, 395.05, 395.1, 395.2, 395.9; 38 USC 4301, 4303, 4316)

Any Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) employee who needs to be absent from the Eden
Area ROP service to fulfill military service shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the Superintendent or
designee, unless the giving of such notice is precluded by military necessity or is otherwise impossible or
unreasonable.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.85, 1002.86)

Salary/Compensation

The Eden Area ROP shall pay an employee's salary or compensation for the first 30 days of any one absence for
military leave or during one fiscal year, under any of the following conditions:

1. Active Military Training or Exercises:  The employee is granted a temporary military leave of absence to
engage in ordered military duty for purposes of active military training, encampment, naval cruises, special
exercises, or like activity as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States Armed Forces,
National Guard, or Naval Militia, provided that:  (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395, 395.01)
 

a. The employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least one year immediately prior to the
day the military leave begins.
 

b. The ordered duty does not exceed 180 days, including time involved in going to and returning from such
duty.
 

2. Active Military Duty:  The employee is on military leave, other than a temporary military leave, to engage in
active military duty as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States Armed Forces, the National
Guard, or the Naval Militia, provided that the employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least
one year immediately prior to the day the military leave begins.  (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395.02)
 

3. War or Other Emergency:  The employee, however long employed by the Eden Area ROP, is a member of the
National Guard who is engaged in military or naval duty during a state of extreme emergency as declared by
the Governor, or during such time as the National Guard may be on active duty in situations described in
Military and Veterans Code 146, including travel time to and from such duty.  (Military and Veterans Code
395.05)

In determining the length of Eden Area ROP employment when necessary to determine eligibility for compensation
for military leave, all recognized military service performed during and prior to Eden Area ROP employment shall be
included.

For classified employees, 30 days' compensation shall be one month's salary. For certificated employees, 30 days'
compensation shall be one-tenth of the employee's annual salary.   (Education Code 45059)

During the period of military leave, an employee may request to use any vacation or similar paid leave accrued
before the commencement of the military leave in order to continue receiving compensation for the employee's
employment with the Eden Area ROP. The Eden Area ROP shall not require the employee to use such leave.  (38
USC 4316; 20 CFR 1002.153)

Benefits

An employee may elect to continue health plan coverage during the military leave. The maximum period of coverage
for the employee and any dependents shall be either 24 months from the beginning of the leave or until the day after
the employee fails to apply for or return to employment, whichever is less.  (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.164)

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1117



An employee on military leave may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to the extent
that other employees on leave are so required.  (38 USC 4316)

An employee absent for 30 days or fewer shall not be required to pay more than the employee share for such
coverage. An employee absent for 31 days or more may be required to pay not more than 102 percent of the full
premium under the plan.  (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.166)

Any employee called into active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a United States
Military Reserve organization shall receive, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount of the employee's
military pay and the amount the employee would have received from the Eden Area ROP and all benefits that the
employee would have received had the employee not been called to active military duty, unless the benefits are
prohibited or limited by vendor contracts.  (Education Code 44018)

Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual

An employee on temporary military leave under the conditions described in Item #1 in the section entitled
"Salary/Compensation" above, shall continue to accrue the same vacation, sick leave, and holiday privileges to which
the employee would otherwise be entitled if not absent.  (Military and Veterans Code 395)

An employee on military leave who is serving in active duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations
military or police operation shall not accrue sick leave or vacation leave during the period of such leave.  (Military and
Veterans Code 395.1)

However, an employee who is a National Guard member on active duty as described in Item #3 in the section
entitled "Salary/Compensation" above, shall not suffer any loss or diminution of vacation or holiday privileges
because of the employee's leave of absence.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

Pension Plan Service Credit

Pension plan service credit and vesting shall continue during an employee's military leave as though no break in
service had occurred. Payment of employer and employee contributions shall be made in accordance with law for
members of the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System.  (Education Code
22850-22856; Government Code 20990-21013)

Employment Status

Absence for military leave shall not affect the classification of any employee. In the case of a probationary employee,
the period of such absence shall not count as part of service required to obtain permanent status, but shall not be
construed as a break in the continuity of service for any purpose.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans
Code 395; 20 CFR 1002.149)

Reinstatement Rights

At the conclusion of the military duty, an employee shall be promptly reinstated in the position held at the beginning
of the leave, at the salary to which the employee would otherwise have been entitled, except under the conditions
noted below in this section.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.2; 38 USC 4304, 4313;
20 CFR 1002.180-1002.181)

Any employee who performs active military duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations military or
police operation has a right to return to the position held prior to the military service, during terminal leave prior to
the employee's discharge, separation, or release from the armed forces, or within six months of the employee's
release, separation, honorable discharge, or placement on inactive duty. Reinstatement rights shall not be extended
to any such employee who fails to return within 12 months after the first date upon which the employee could
terminate or could cause to have terminated active service.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code
395.1)

When an employee has been on military leave for reasons other than war or national emergency, the time frame for
seeking reinstatement shall depend on the length of military service as follows:  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.115,
1002.118)

1. For a leave of 30 days or fewer, the employee shall report for duty no later than the beginning of the first full
work day following the completion of the military service plus a period of eight hours of rest following a period

2118



for safe transportation to the employee's residence.
 

2. For a leave of 31-180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for reinstatement not
later than 14 days after the completion of military service.
 

3. For a leave of more than 180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for reinstatement
within 90 days after the completion of military service.

Where an employee's reporting or application for reinstatement within the periods specified in Items #1 and #2
above is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the employee, the report or application shall be made as
soon as possible after the expiration of the period.  In the case of Items #2 and #3 where an application is required,
the employee's application may be made orally or in writing and need not follow any particular format.  (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.115, 1002.117, 1002.118)

An employee who is hospitalized for, or convalescing from, an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated during the
performance of military service shall report for duty or submit an application for reinstatement at the end of the
period that is necessary to recover from such illness or injury, but no more than two years after the completion of
military service unless circumstances beyond the employee's control make reporting within the two-year period
impossible or unreasonable.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.116)

Upon receiving an application for reinstatement, the Superintendent or designee shall reinstate the employee as
soon as practicable under the circumstances of the case, but within a time period not to exceed two weeks, absent
unusual circumstances. (20 CFR 1002.181)

If the employee's previous position has been abolished, the Eden Area ROP shall reinstate the employee in a position
of like seniority, status, and pay, if such position exists, or to a comparable vacant position for which the employee is
qualified.  (Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.1; 38 USC 4313; 20 CFR 1002.192)

An employee who fails to report or apply for reinstatement within the appropriate period does not automatically
forfeit the entitlement to reinstatement but shall be subject to the Eden Area ROP's rules and/or practices governing
unexcused absences.  (38 USC 4312)

The Superintendent or designee may elect not to reinstate an employee following military leave if any of the
following conditions exists:

1. The Eden Area ROP's circumstances have so changed as to make such re-employment impossible or
unreasonable, such as a reduction in force that would have included the employee.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR
1002.139)
 

2. The accommodation, training, or effort described in 38 USC 4313(a)(3), (a)(4), or (b)(2)(B) would impose an
undue hardship on the Eden Area ROP as defined in 20 CFR 1002.5 or 1002.198.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR
1002.139)
 

3. The employee's position was for a brief, nonrecurrent period and there was no reasonable expectation that
such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)
 

4. The employee's cumulative length of absence and length of all previous military leave while employed with the
Eden Area ROP exceeds five years, excluding those training and service obligations specified in 38 USC
4312(c).  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.99-1002.103)
 

5. The employee was separated from military service with a disqualifying discharge or under other than
honorable conditions.   (Military and Veterans Code 395.1; 20 USC 4304, 4312; 20 CFR 1002.134-1002.138)

Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees a notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations of
employees granted military leave and of the Eden Area ROP under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 USC 4301-4334.  (38 USC 4334)

This requirement may be met by posting the notice where the Eden Area ROP customarily places notices for
employees.  (38 USC 4334)

3119



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Gov. Code 18540 Definition of armed forces

Gov. Code 18540.3 Recognized military service

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

M&V Code 146 Events justifying calling of militia into active service

M&V Code 389 Definitions; temporary military leave

M&V Code 394 Nondiscrimination based on military service

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 CFR 1002.1-1002.314 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 18 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 178 (1951)

Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 924 (1978)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 77 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 56 (1994)

Court Decision Bowers v. San Buenaventura (1977) 75 Cal. App.3d 65

Court Decision Wright v. City of Santa Clara (1989) 213 Cal. App.3d 1503

U.S. Department of Labor Publication A Non-Technical Resource Guide to the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), rev. April 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YYN378LPYzj3jvdJKbslshUUQ==

Website U.S. Department of Labor, USERRA -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PNGGXVyMj8Zx0NMplus6qWUVA==

Website National School Boards Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PGLybcP29yufJSot5FEGJg==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IORNQkSRCA9cCqs3OgrdZw==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10ZbnsLBD4kFslsh0MNykuzuA==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/huJBJf9Mb5p0jg2fOeadlA==

4032 Reasonable Accommodation -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eK452M5kQnYGhD40xSsBPA==

4120



4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fQAypGvWMEaBoqLbzsUZIQ==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R1SyYrIZ40DSa1c7mTns8w==

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zzr8ox1WUuCyBNJ5ACqUVQ==

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/1yAFPiEhUv1D8UmvXlwsUw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7plusW7uQZAz0yoM9vjFJplussMw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/43LAg0J4Hc77RETcpxlRJQ==

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eewP9MaTI3ITpPD5D3GF4A==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Pd4UbqkJGPTTnAAfxxKDvw==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4A0tslshXyXIJvP6B6ft5plusnng==

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/0BkcCrcOcSUkdOhZoslshcG2A==

4261 Leaves - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/liG4YQsRuj6F8elS9GG2kA==

4261 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Z5o7gMjXslshycN2SHIZ9BFRA==

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh8oMjzcJGtcyVciXusC0bA==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Jf1oae2HJ0qdxsBFnE9myQ==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10wlsSqx3Y703oUH6Lu9Bg==

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tlDEw6WINi9spgzXcsOgiA==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G3y2Jy4MfTgEffD9BUvvfw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/d737EvzScSbfuUUjvZslshvAA==

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wuI5V6hXWcizpM6hydtxDg==

5121



Regulation 4361.5: Military LeaveRegulation 4361.5: Military Leave Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law to employees performing military
duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis in a uniformed service, including active duty, active duty for training, initial
active duty for training, inactive duty training, full-time National Guard duty, examination to determine fitness for
duty, and performance of funeral honors duty. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.01,
395.02, 395.05, 395.1, 395.2, 395.9; 38 USC 4301, 4303, 4316)

Any Eden Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) employee who needs to be absent from the Eden
Area ROP service to fulfill military service shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the Superintendent or
designee, unless the giving of such notice is precluded by military necessity or is otherwise impossible or
unreasonable.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.85, 1002.86)

Salary/Compensation

The Eden Area ROP shall pay an employee's salary or compensation for the first 30 days of any one absence for
military leave or during one fiscal year, under any of the following conditions:

1. Active Military Training or Exercises:  The employee is granted a temporary military leave of absence to
engage in ordered military duty for purposes of active military training, encampment, naval cruises, special
exercises, or like activity as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States Armed Forces,
National Guard, or Naval Militia, provided that:  (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395, 395.01)
 

a. The employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least one year immediately prior to the
day the military leave begins.
 

b. The ordered duty does not exceed 180 days, including time involved in going to and returning from such
duty.
 

2. Active Military Duty:  The employee is on military leave, other than a temporary military leave, to engage in
active military duty as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States Armed Forces, the National
Guard, or the Naval Militia, provided that the employee has been employed by the Eden Area ROP for at least
one year immediately prior to the day the military leave begins.  (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395.02)
 

3. War or Other Emergency:  The employee, however long employed by the Eden Area ROP, is a member of the
National Guard who is engaged in military or naval duty during a state of extreme emergency as declared by
the Governor, or during such time as the National Guard may be on active duty in situations described in
Military and Veterans Code 146, including travel time to and from such duty.  (Military and Veterans Code
395.05)

In determining the length of Eden Area ROP employment when necessary to determine eligibility for compensation
for military leave, all recognized military service performed during and prior to Eden Area ROP employment shall be
included.

For classified employees, 30 days' compensation shall be one month's salary. For certificated employees, 30 days'
compensation shall be one-tenth of the employee's annual salary.   (Education Code 45059)

During the period of military leave, an employee may request to use any vacation or similar paid leave accrued
before the commencement of the military leave in order to continue receiving compensation for the employee's
employment with the Eden Area ROP. The Eden Area ROP shall not require the employee to use such leave.  (38
USC 4316; 20 CFR 1002.153)

Benefits

An employee may elect to continue health plan coverage during the military leave. The maximum period of coverage
for the employee and any dependents shall be either 24 months from the beginning of the leave or until the day after
the employee fails to apply for or return to employment, whichever is less.  (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.164)

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1122



An employee on military leave may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to the extent
that other employees on leave are so required.  (38 USC 4316)

An employee absent for 30 days or fewer shall not be required to pay more than the employee share for such
coverage. An employee absent for 31 days or more may be required to pay not more than 102 percent of the full
premium under the plan.  (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.166)

Any employee called into active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a United States
Military Reserve organization shall receive, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount of the employee's
military pay and the amount the employee would have received from the Eden Area ROP and all benefits that the
employee would have received had the employee not been called to active military duty, unless the benefits are
prohibited or limited by vendor contracts.  (Education Code 44018)

Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual

An employee on temporary military leave under the conditions described in Item #1 in the section entitled
"Salary/Compensation" above, shall continue to accrue the same vacation, sick leave, and holiday privileges to which
the employee would otherwise be entitled if not absent.  (Military and Veterans Code 395)

An employee on military leave who is serving in active duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations
military or police operation shall not accrue sick leave or vacation leave during the period of such leave.  (Military and
Veterans Code 395.1)

However, an employee who is a National Guard member on active duty as described in Item #3 in the section
entitled "Salary/Compensation" above, shall not suffer any loss or diminution of vacation or holiday privileges
because of the employee's leave of absence.  (Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

Pension Plan Service Credit

Pension plan service credit and vesting shall continue during an employee's military leave as though no break in
service had occurred. Payment of employer and employee contributions shall be made in accordance with law for
members of the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System.  (Education Code
22850-22856; Government Code 20990-21013)

Employment Status

Absence for military leave shall not affect the classification of any employee. In the case of a probationary employee,
the period of such absence shall not count as part of service required to obtain permanent status, but shall not be
construed as a break in the continuity of service for any purpose.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans
Code 395; 20 CFR 1002.149)

Reinstatement Rights

At the conclusion of the military duty, an employee shall be promptly reinstated in the position held at the beginning
of the leave, at the salary to which the employee would otherwise have been entitled, except under the conditions
noted below in this section.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.2; 38 USC 4304, 4313;
20 CFR 1002.180-1002.181)

Any employee who performs active military duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations military or
police operation has a right to return to the position held prior to the military service, during terminal leave prior to
the employee's discharge, separation, or release from the armed forces, or within six months of the employee's
release, separation, honorable discharge, or placement on inactive duty. Reinstatement rights shall not be extended
to any such employee who fails to return within 12 months after the first date upon which the employee could
terminate or could cause to have terminated active service.  (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code
395.1)

When an employee has been on military leave for reasons other than war or national emergency, the time frame for
seeking reinstatement shall depend on the length of military service as follows:  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.115,
1002.118)

1. For a leave of 30 days or fewer, the employee shall report for duty no later than the beginning of the first full
work day following the completion of the military service plus a period of eight hours of rest following a period

2123



for safe transportation to the employee's residence.
 

2. For a leave of 31-180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for reinstatement not
later than 14 days after the completion of military service.
 

3. For a leave of more than 180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for reinstatement
within 90 days after the completion of military service.

Where an employee's reporting or application for reinstatement within the periods specified in Items #1 and #2
above is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the employee, the report or application shall be made as
soon as possible after the expiration of the period.  In the case of Items #2 and #3 where an application is required,
the employee's application may be made orally or in writing and need not follow any particular format.  (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.115, 1002.117, 1002.118)

An employee who is hospitalized for, or convalescing from, an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated during the
performance of military service shall report for duty or submit an application for reinstatement at the end of the
period that is necessary to recover from such illness or injury, but no more than two years after the completion of
military service unless circumstances beyond the employee's control make reporting within the two-year period
impossible or unreasonable.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.116)

Upon receiving an application for reinstatement, the Superintendent or designee shall reinstate the employee as
soon as practicable under the circumstances of the case, but within a time period not to exceed two weeks, absent
unusual circumstances. (20 CFR 1002.181)

If the employee's previous position has been abolished, the Eden Area ROP shall reinstate the employee in a position
of like seniority, status, and pay, if such position exists, or to a comparable vacant position for which the employee is
qualified.  (Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.1; 38 USC 4313; 20 CFR 1002.192)

An employee who fails to report or apply for reinstatement within the appropriate period does not automatically
forfeit the entitlement to reinstatement but shall be subject to the Eden Area ROP's rules and/or practices governing
unexcused absences.  (38 USC 4312)

The Superintendent or designee may elect not to reinstate an employee following military leave if any of the
following conditions exists:

1. The Eden Area ROP's circumstances have so changed as to make such re-employment impossible or
unreasonable, such as a reduction in force that would have included the employee.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR
1002.139)
 

2. The accommodation, training, or effort described in 38 USC 4313(a)(3), (a)(4), or (b)(2)(B) would impose an
undue hardship on the Eden Area ROP as defined in 20 CFR 1002.5 or 1002.198.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR
1002.139)
 

3. The employee's position was for a brief, nonrecurrent period and there was no reasonable expectation that
such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period.  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)
 

4. The employee's cumulative length of absence and length of all previous military leave while employed with the
Eden Area ROP exceeds five years, excluding those training and service obligations specified in 38 USC
4312(c).  (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.99-1002.103)
 

5. The employee was separated from military service with a disqualifying discharge or under other than
honorable conditions.   (Military and Veterans Code 395.1; 20 USC 4304, 4312; 20 CFR 1002.134-1002.138)

Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees a notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations of
employees granted military leave and of the Eden Area ROP under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 USC 4301-4334.  (38 USC 4334)

This requirement may be met by posting the notice where the Eden Area ROP customarily places notices for
employees.  (38 USC 4334)

3124



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits; STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty; computation of salary

Gov. Code 18540 Definition of armed forces

Gov. Code 18540.3 Recognized military service

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits; PERS members on military leave

M&V Code 146 Events justifying calling of militia into active service

M&V Code 389 Definitions; temporary military leave

M&V Code 394 Nondiscrimination based on military service

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 CFR 1002.1-1002.314 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 18 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 178 (1951)

Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 924 (1978)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 77 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 56 (1994)

Court Decision Bowers v. San Buenaventura (1977) 75 Cal. App.3d 65

Court Decision Wright v. City of Santa Clara (1989) 213 Cal. App.3d 1503

U.S. Department of Labor Publication A Non-Technical Resource Guide to the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), rev. April 2005

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YYN378LPYzj3jvdJKbslshUUQ==

Website U.S. Department of Labor, USERRA -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PNGGXVyMj8Zx0NMplus6qWUVA==

Website National School Boards Association -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PGLybcP29yufJSot5FEGJg==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2121 Superintendent's Contract -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IORNQkSRCA9cCqs3OgrdZw==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10ZbnsLBD4kFslsh0MNykuzuA==

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/huJBJf9Mb5p0jg2fOeadlA==

4032 Reasonable Accommodation -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eK452M5kQnYGhD40xSsBPA==

4125



4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fQAypGvWMEaBoqLbzsUZIQ==

4112.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R1SyYrIZ40DSa1c7mTns8w==

4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zzr8ox1WUuCyBNJ5ACqUVQ==

4116 Probationary/Permanent Status -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/1yAFPiEhUv1D8UmvXlwsUw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7plusW7uQZAz0yoM9vjFJplussMw==

4161 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/43LAg0J4Hc77RETcpxlRJQ==

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eewP9MaTI3ITpPD5D3GF4A==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Pd4UbqkJGPTTnAAfxxKDvw==

4212.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4A0tslshXyXIJvP6B6ft5plusnng==

4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/0BkcCrcOcSUkdOhZoslshcG2A==

4261 Leaves - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/liG4YQsRuj6F8elS9GG2kA==

4261 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Z5o7gMjXslshycN2SHIZ9BFRA==

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slsh8oMjzcJGtcyVciXusC0bA==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Jf1oae2HJ0qdxsBFnE9myQ==

4312.9 Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/10wlsSqx3Y703oUH6Lu9Bg==

4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tlDEw6WINi9spgzXcsOgiA==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G3y2Jy4MfTgEffD9BUvvfw==

4361 Leaves -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/d737EvzScSbfuUUjvZslshvAA==

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wuI5V6hXWcizpM6hydtxDg==

5126



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 6200: Adult EducationPolicy 6200: Adult Education Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 04/07/2022 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 04/07/2022

The Governing Board commits to providing enrollment options that meet the diverse needs and interests of Eden
Area Regional Occupational Program (Eden Area ROP) students. The Governing Board recognizes that education is a
lifelong process and that it is important for individuals to continuously develop new skills. Recognizing that adult
learners may have a need to learn new occupational skills or upgrade existing levels of skills, the Governing Board
permits adult access to Eden Area ROP adult classes on the Hayward Center campuses during the school day as
space permits. For purposes of these programs, "adult" includes a person age 18 or older or other persons not
concurrently enrolled in a regular high school program. High school students shall have first priority for enrollment in
district offered Eden Area ROP classes.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 10501 Adult education; definition of adult for attendance counting

5 CCR 10508 Records and reports

5 CCR 10530 Counseling and guidance services

5 CCR 10560 Standards of administration

5 CCR 53412 Minimum qualifications for instructors of noncredit courses

5 CCR 80034 Teaching credentials; adult education

5 CCR 80034.5 Adult education; substitute teachers

5 CCR 80036-80036.4 Requirements for designated subjects adult education credential

5 CCR 80040.2-80040.2.7 Programs of personalized preparation for the designated subjects adult
education teaching credentialing

Ed. Code 10200 CalWORKs instructional and job training plan -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Th2G6fo4kyRGpd4slshqm4Wsg==

Ed. Code 41975-41976.1 Adult education; authorized classes and courses

Ed. Code 44260.2-44260.3 Credential requirements; designated subjects adult education credential

Ed. Code 44865 Qualifications for independent study teachers

Ed. Code 46191 Attendance for adults in correctional facilities

Ed. Code 46300.1-46300.42 Independent study

Ed. Code 51040 Prescribed courses

Ed. Code 51056 Adult education course of study

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements

Ed. Code 51241 Temporary two-year or permanent exemption from physical education

Ed. Code 51246 Physical education exemptions

Ed. Code 51730-51732 Powers of governing boards (authorization for elementary summer school
classes); admissions of adults and minors

Ed. Code 51745 Independent study

Ed. Code 51810-51815 Community service classes

Ed. Code 52500-52523 Adult schools

Ed. Code 52540-52544 Adult English classes

Ed. Code 52550-52556 Classes in citizenship

Ed. Code 52570-52572 Disabled adults

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1127



Ed. Code 52610-52616.18 Adult schools; finances

Ed. Code 52620 Attendance at community college as special part-time student

Ed. Code 52651-52656 Immigrant Workforce Preparation Act

Ed. Code 60410 Books for adult classes

Ed. Code 84830 Adult education consortium

Ed. Code 84900-84920 Adult Education Program

Ed. Code 8500-8538 Adult education

W&I Code 11320-11329.5 CalWORKs; education and job training

Federal ReferencesFederal References DescriptionDescription

20 USC 2301-2414 Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/9yof5kixbBlok9FzhxqqWg==

29 USC 3101-3255 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

29 USC 3271-3333 Adult Education and Family Literacy Act

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Adult Education Block Grant (AEBG) Measures of Effectiveness

California Department of Education Publication Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 20-
01, July 23, 2020

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website California Department of Education, Adult Education -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/gAzTlB92QDlgv66uCVMmplusw==

Website
California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Apprenticeship
Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/bflwmgcl9A2X6bB1bsnz4g==

Website California Council for Adult Education -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Espa0cpFsAr9xZVyslshqxkZg==

Website Comprehensive Adult Student Assessment Systems -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/i4duplusM9plusOMt75lXpka2l3A==

Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/cxWNiqRUuIsaq7efc7aH4Q==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/e50nGqNuG7jQfN4N7E4ONA==

0440 District Technology Plan -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/RslshfknvrtqLS6I2O66djSqw==

0440 District Technology Plan -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/RfxtBf867bhYPL5Vh3voKg==

0500 Accountability -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/pUslshJLoR2Vu1eqoHS41AdTg==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NCIIO1x8xFCdtQRniKVFQQ==

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/BA1WWI3efmslshPOPghyV4WnQ==

1312.3-E PDF(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/W6rvYg4mauU6zHehPSApOQ==

2128



3260 Fees And Charges -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/GBmLyqzfzSCkfJHelqrNEQ==

3260 Fees And Charges -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zPs9HLtslshppqbH6809dB9Ew==

3541 Transportation Routes And Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/G13FUhLz593aBJpq6dJDKA==

4112.2 Certification -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Ai5mkBQW9g0dF3kIAslshfVEQ==

4112.2 Certification -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/9fofY9jV351bgNoXjiVCJw==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/N2C6YsKYwhCRcCeraFplusCng==

4121 Temporary/Substitute Personnel -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TxPplushZopmplusFgI2Kv57ffhA==

4131 Staff Development -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/uP83U93Ls7bxBnKbH0uyyg==

4131 Staff Development -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/8CAcELrJtCybNFPvCiecyw==

6112 School Day -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Frt7PpkAhxpluscoaSxpfRxAA==

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/472k35D3LPA5rQXS3L1eGQ==

6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zhyAccgjCdR2q3edglbWOw==

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TGUvZ9YYeUcMZslsh2KNSSuRw==

3129



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 7150: Site Selection And DevelopmentPolicy 7150: Site Selection And Development Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/05/2020

The Governing Board believes that a school site should serve the Eden Area Regional Occupational Program's (Eden
Area ROP) educational needs in accordance with the Eden Area ROP's master plan, as well as show potential for
contributing to other community needs.

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of community input in the site selection process. To this end, the
Governing Board will solicit community input whenever a school site is to be selected and shall provide public notice
and hold public hearings in accordance with law.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a site selection process which complies with law and ensures that the
best possible sites are acquired and developed in a cost-effective manner.

(cf. 7140 - Architectural and Engineering Services)

(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing)

Before acquiring property for a new school or an addition to an existing school site, the Governing Board, at a public
hearing,  shall either evaluate the property at a public hearing using state site selection standards. (Education Code
17211) specified in 5 CCR 14010 or, if a district advisory committee was appointed to evaluate the property, receive
the committee’s report of findings based on those standards. (Education Code 17211, 17251)

Environmental Impact Investigation for the Site Selection Process

The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether any proposed development project is subject to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and shall ensure compliance with this Act,
whenever so required. including any web site posting requirements. When evaluating Eden Area ROP projects, the
CEQA guidelines shall be used.

Environmental review documents, including a draft environmental impact report, environmental impact report,
negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration, and public notice of the preparation and availability of such
documents, shall be posted on the district’s web site. (Public Resources Code 21082.1, 21092, 21092.2)

Agricultural Land

If the proposed site is in an area designated in a city, county, or city and county general plan for agricultural use and
zoned for agricultural production, the Governing Board shall determine all of the following: (Education Code
17215.5)

1. That the Eden Area ROP has notified and consulted with the city, county, or city and county within which the
prospective site is to be located

2. That the Governing Board has evaluated the final site selection based on all factors affecting the public interest
and not limited to selection on the basis of the cost of the land

3. That the Eden Area ROP shall attempt to minimize any public health and safety issues resulting from the
neighboring agricultural uses that may affect students and employees at the site

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

14 CCR 15000-15285 Implementation of California Environmental Quality Act of 1970

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1130



5 CCR 14001-14036 California Department of Education: school facilities construction

CCP 1263.710-1263.770 Remediation of hazardous substances on property to be acquired by school
district

Ed. Code 17006 Definition of self-certifying district -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/JyroSyXQrb4GnslshgVQuNx5A==

Ed. Code 17024
Prior written approval of CDE for selection of school site or construction of
building -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/plusTy35OslshxGAtnD3w6eRJslshxw==

Ed. Code 17070.10-17077.10 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fu4PsUtUAb4qYYOY9breHg==

Ed. Code 17210-17224 School Sites; general provisions -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ur7JgL2vMelWTCc3SCXTPA==

Ed. Code 17240-17245 New Schools Relief Act -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IEplus2NTUuiy0VslshfQbayySsQ==

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/KyAwX1K9LOug3Oc4uUy4Rw==

Ed. Code 17251-17256 CDE powers concerning buildings and building sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NwS3Om8nmJ04Yslsho0jqlt8A==

Ed. Code 17260-17268 Plans and specifications for school facilities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/K93eKC5SslshBGM5azLOpZgjg==

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17565-17592.5 Board duties; management and control of school property

Ed. Code 35271 Power to acquire and construct on adjacent property

Ed. Code 35275 New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park authorities

Gov. Code 53094 Authority to render zoning ordinances inapplicable

Gov. Code 65402 Acquisition or disposition of property

Gov. Code 65995-65997 Developer fees

Gov. Code 66455.9 Written notices of proposed public school site within development;
investigation and report; conditions for acquisition

H&S Code 44360 Risk assessment

Pub. Res. Code 21000-21177 California Environmental Quality Act of 1970

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 130 (1999)

Website Governor’s Office of Planning and Research -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/MvslshHMG1znUbWW5UoFHtJqQ==

Website Department of Toxic Substances Control -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/POmXdiUm5t3RqP4HNX5AFA==

Website
California Department of Education, School Site Selection and Approval Guide
-
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TToplusOF7QplusSl3WgZk3FBYig==

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Website Department of General Services, Office of Public School Construction -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UxUcDGuszWNedr16Dp8wuQ==

Website California Department of Education, School Facilities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ATZTQPd7NwSB3FBNcFeslshYA==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

2131



1113
District And School Web Sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/6eqaGIraNiZIWJNVMpplusi2A==

1113 District And School Web Sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/H2plusFDdQcslsh06TQUsCBPyRyw==

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Web Sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/2ID6yollRgZV45k7tJtFzQ==

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Ukztn8obv2wvHYrt6YyrXQ==

1220-E PDF(1) Citizen Advisory Committees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/cgge0hBbplusIxfR9MT1h53QQ==

3514 Environmental Safety -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zY8DG5z4nD9CDQrTO6xVUA==

7000 Concepts And Roles -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4Cm6zx60US39hXkslshcwnV7Q==

7131 Relations With Local Agencies -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fplushFB7oyUV0nUTl3PqM27Q==

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/idislshvhsrgybBaT9HDGMrqw==

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QAjqAvizHt4JDyplusdjlfDpQ==

9000 Role Of The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7ycRID3oKqdPgEslshplus6tolGQ==

9320 Meetings And Notices -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eplusCslshSHGeOfxjLy5RtT9plusEw==

9323.2 Actions By The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/L4m83QLouIZ6tbjz3FYlyw==

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R4x9ycd3ZUAnyc6KmSk7sg==

3132



Regulation 7150: Site Selection And DevelopmentRegulation 7150: Site Selection And Development Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/05/2020

As part of the Eden Area Regional Occupational Program's (Eden Area ROP) site selection process, the
Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Meet with appropriate local government recreation and park authorities to review all possible methods of
coordinating the planning, design, and construction of new school facilities and school sites or major additions to
existing school facilities and recreation and park facilities in the community. (Education Code 35275)

(cf. 7131 - Relations with Local Agencies)

2. Notify the appropriate local planning agency in writing and request its report and recommendations regarding the
proposed site or proposed addition's conformity with the adopted general plan. (Government Code 65402; Public
Resources Code 21151.2)

3. Have the site investigated by competent personnel with regard to population trends, transportation, water supply,
waste disposal facilities, utilities, traffic hazards, surface drainage conditions, and other factors affecting initial and
operating costs. This investigation shall include geological and soil engineering studies to preclude locating the school
on terrain that has the potential for earthquake or other geologic hazard damage as specified in Government Code
65302. (Education Code 17212-17212.5)

4. As necessary, Make a written request for information necessary or useful to assess and determine the safety of a
proposed school site, or an addition to an existing school site, from a person, corporation, public utility, locally
publicly owned utility, or governmental agency regarding pipelines, electric transmission and distribution lines,
railroads, and storage tanks in accordance with law. (Education Code 17212.2, 17251)

5. Ensure that the site meets state standards for school site selection as specified in 5 CCR 14010-14012.

6. Ensure compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as required by law.including posting
required notices to the district web site. (Public Resources Code 21000-21177)

7. If Notify the California Department of Education in writing before acquiring title or leasing the site if the proposed
site is within two miles of the air line of an airport runway or proposed runway, before acquiring title to or leasing
the site, notify the California Department of Education in writing. (Education Code 17215)

8. If Conduct an air quality analysis pursuant to Health and Safety Code 44360 and Education Code 17213 if the
proposed site is within 500 feet of the edge of the closest traffic lane of a freeway or other busy traffic corridor,
conduct an air quality analysis pursuant to Health and Safety Code 44360 and Education Code 17213 and determine
that the air quality at the proposed site is such that neither short-term nor long-term exposure poses significant
health risks to students. (Education Code 17213)

In the selection and development of projects funded pursuant to the School Facilities Program of 1998 (Proposition
1A) as contained in Education Code 17070.10-17077.10, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Determine whether the proposed site is free of toxic contamination by ensuring that a Phase I environmental
assessment and/or preliminary endangerment assessment is conducted as required by law (Education Code 17213.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the preliminary endangerment assessment is made available for
public review and comment in accordance with Education Code 17213.1.

2. Annually submit a Submit an annual summary report of expenditures to the State Allocation Board in accordance
with law (Education Code 17076.10)

3. Include in the plans a hard-wired connection to a public switched telephone network or utilization of wireless
technology (Education Code 17077.10)

4. Establish a participation goal of at least three percent, per year, of the overall dollar amount expended each year
by the Eden Area ROP for disabled veteran business enterprises (Education Code 17076.11)

 

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1133



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

14 CCR 15000-15285 Implementation of California Environmental Quality Act of 1970

5 CCR 14001-14036 California Department of Education: school facilities construction

CCP 1263.710-1263.770 Remediation of hazardous substances on property to be acquired by school
district

Ed. Code 17006 Definition of self-certifying district -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/JyroSyXQrb4GnslshgVQuNx5A==

Ed. Code 17024
Prior written approval of CDE for selection of school site or construction of
building -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/plusTy35OslshxGAtnD3w6eRJslshxw==

Ed. Code 17070.10-17077.10 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fu4PsUtUAb4qYYOY9breHg==

Ed. Code 17210-17224 School Sites; general provisions -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ur7JgL2vMelWTCc3SCXTPA==

Ed. Code 17240-17245 New Schools Relief Act -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IEplus2NTUuiy0VslshfQbayySsQ==

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/KyAwX1K9LOug3Oc4uUy4Rw==

Ed. Code 17251-17256 CDE powers concerning buildings and building sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NwS3Om8nmJ04Yslsho0jqlt8A==

Ed. Code 17260-17268 Plans and specifications for school facilities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/K93eKC5SslshBGM5azLOpZgjg==

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Ed. Code 17565-17592.5 Board duties; management and control of school property

Ed. Code 35271 Power to acquire and construct on adjacent property

Ed. Code 35275 New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park authorities

Gov. Code 53094 Authority to render zoning ordinances inapplicable

Gov. Code 65402 Acquisition or disposition of property

Gov. Code 65995-65997 Developer fees

Gov. Code 66455.9 Written notices of proposed public school site within development;
investigation and report; conditions for acquisition

H&S Code 44360 Risk assessment

Pub. Res. Code 21000-21177 California Environmental Quality Act of 1970

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 130 (1999)

Website Governor’s Office of Planning and Research -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/MvslshHMG1znUbWW5UoFHtJqQ==

Website Department of Toxic Substances Control -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/POmXdiUm5t3RqP4HNX5AFA==

Website
California Department of Education, School Site Selection and Approval Guide
-
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TToplusOF7QplusSl3WgZk3FBYig==

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

2134



Website
Department of General Services, Office of Public School Construction -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UxUcDGuszWNedr16Dp8wuQ==

Website California Department of Education, School Facilities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ATZTQPd7NwSB3FBNcFeslshYA==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1113 District And School Web Sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/6eqaGIraNiZIWJNVMpplusi2A==

1113 District And School Web Sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/H2plusFDdQcslsh06TQUsCBPyRyw==

1113-E PDF(1) District And School Web Sites -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/2ID6yollRgZV45k7tJtFzQ==

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Ukztn8obv2wvHYrt6YyrXQ==

1220-E PDF(1) Citizen Advisory Committees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/cgge0hBbplusIxfR9MT1h53QQ==

3514 Environmental Safety -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/zY8DG5z4nD9CDQrTO6xVUA==

7000 Concepts And Roles -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/4Cm6zx60US39hXkslshcwnV7Q==

7131 Relations With Local Agencies -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/fplushFB7oyUV0nUTl3PqM27Q==

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/idislshvhsrgybBaT9HDGMrqw==

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QAjqAvizHt4JDyplusdjlfDpQ==

9000 Role Of The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7ycRID3oKqdPgEslshplus6tolGQ==

9320 Meetings And Notices -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eplusCslshSHGeOfxjLy5RtT9plusEw==

9323.2 Actions By The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/L4m83QLouIZ6tbjz3FYlyw==

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/R4x9ycd3ZUAnyc6KmSk7sg==

3135



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Bylaw 9100: OrganizationBylaw 9100: Organization Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/07/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 06/05/2020

Annual Organizational Meeting

The Governing Board shall hold an annual organizational meeting within the time limits prescribed by law. (Education
Code 35143)

At this meeting the Governing Board shall:

1. Elect a President and a Vice President from its members

2. Develop a schedule of regular meetings for the year

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the
policy.

State ReferencesState References DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35143 Annual organizational meetings; date and notice

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 5017 Term of office

Gov. Code 54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance

Management Resources ReferencesManagement Resources References DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 619 (1976)

Attorney General Opinion 68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 65 (1985)

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/UdykszdmPETuDslshXk6R5akQ==

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

9000 Role Of The Board -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7ycRID3oKqdPgEslshplus6tolGQ==

9005 Governance Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QIvu1QcS9zRiiXIitvWn8A==

9121 President -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/bpEDzOYTkRPeaHM7vt7pTw==

9230 Orientation -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/kxBJplusnQwsuLKfMFpplusjR6JA==

9320 Meetings And Notices -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/eplusCslshSHGeOfxjLy5RtT9plusEw==

9323 Meeting Conduct -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/RnyuzplusIOeslshGGiBB7hDfSIg==

Board Policy Manual
Eden Area ROP

1136



 

ACTION ITEMS 



 

  

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

PREPARED BY:            Anthony Oum, Fiscal Services Administrator 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve Bid 22-23-001 for 

 Transportation Services to San Jose Charter, Inc. for the 2022-2023 

 School Year 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Typically, the Eden Area ROP contracts for busing services to and from the center with 

our partner districts. Due to a shortage of bus drivers at the districts, the Eden Area ROP 

issued Bid 22-23-001 for transportation services for the 2022-2023 school year. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

On September 23, 2022 and September 30, 2022, Bid 22-23-001 for transportation 

services was advertised with the Daily Review and posted to our website in compliance 

with Public Contract Code 20112. Vendors were to deliver a bid to the Eden Area ROP 

on or before 2:00 PM PST on Friday, October 7, 2022. San Jose Charters, Inc. was the 

only vendor that submitted a bid for consideration. Upon review of the bid, based on 

the number of students from our partner high schools attending programs at the center, 

there are a total of six bus routes, reflecting a total cost of $808,500.00. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

It is recommended that the Governing Board approve Bid 22-23-001 for transportation 

services to San Jose Charter, Inc. for the 2022-2023 school year 

137



EDEN AREA REGIONAL 

OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

BID AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

BID# 22-23-001

BID DUE DATE: 10/07/22 at 2:00 P.M. PST 

EDEN AREA REGIONAL OCCUPATION PROGRAM 

26316 Hesperian Blvd. 

Hayward, CA 94545 

EDEN AREA REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM BID AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES PAGE ) 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

sc379865 

138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



 
  

DATE: November 3, 2022 

TO: ROP Governing Board 

FROM: Blaine Torpey, Superintendent 

SUBJECT: Request the Governing Board to approve the Adoption of the 

Reclassification Request Procedures and Policy  

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Classified employees perform their duties based on job descriptions that are aligned 

with the salary schedule and built into a structure of job families and classifications.  

There are times when a classified employee requests for a review of their job 

description, the classification, or their salary.  It is important to have a process that is 

established, aligned with best practices, and impartial. 
 

CURRENT SITUATION 
 

The Eden Area ROP Reclassification Request Procedures and Policy has been updated 

based on the feedback and discussion at the October 7, 2022 Governing Board 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Governing Board approve the adoption of the 

Reclassification Request Procedures and Policy. 

214



 
 
 
 

 
WASC Accredited 

A Joint Venture of the Castro Valley, Hayward, San Leandro, and San Lorenzo Unified School Districts   

                                                               Follow us @edenarearop 
Governing Board Approved: Pending 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Blaine C. Torpey, Superintendent 

26316 Hesperian Blvd., Hayward, CA 94545• 510.293.2900• www.edenrop.org 

RECLASSIFICATION REQUEST PROCEDURES AND POLICY 

Criteria For Reclassification Requests 

 

When a classified employee requests reclassification for job title, job class, job salary or 

any other dispute regarding their overall duties or compensation, the criteria to be 

examined is: 

 

• the job duties within the description 

• who assigned the duties 

• the duration of assignment or assigned duties 

• the level of responsibility required of the duties 

• the level of risk (if a mistake is made) associated with the duties 

 

Requests for Reclassification  

 

A request for reclassification must be made by the employee.  Should a classified 

employee request a reclassification, the request must be generated by the employee.  

The burden falls upon the employee to make their case for any change.  A request 

must be made by September 15 or January 15 in any given school year.  Findings will be 

issued by December 15 and April 15, respectively.  

 

The following steps will assist in evaluating the request: 

 

1. The employee sSubmits of request in writing. 
 

2. The eEmployee presents a review of their job description.  This should include: 
 

a. An accounting for all duties as listed with examples. 

b. A list of duties not included that should be. 

c. A list of duties that are included but no longer relevant. 

d. Any justification for any other proposed changes. 

e. Any other information that the employee would like to provide to support 

their request. 

 

3. The iImmediate supervisor reviews employee’sthe employee’s analysis of job 

duties, actual duties listed, and adds supervisor’s analysis. 

 

4. The sSupervisor conducts job description review. 

 

5. The sSupervisor conducts audit of partner districts practices, including a 

comparative salary analysis to the extent possible. 

 

215



Reclassification Request Procedures and Policy 

Governing Board Approved: Pending 

Page 2 of 3 

 

6. The employee or the supervisor may initiate a A time study (blocks of time where 

the employee tracks the time spent on different tasks). 

 

7. The Human Resources Administrator will collect the data and information. 

 

8. The information will be shared with a panel composed of the Superintendent, the 

Human Resources Administrator, and an external human resources specialist. 

 

9. The panel will make a non-binding recommendation to the Governing Board. 

 

10. The Governing Boards’ decision will be final. 

 

Approval of Reclassification  

 

Reclassification can happen for the reasons below: 

 

1. Significant new job duties permanently added by supervisor. 

 

a. Requires additional skills, greater responsibility, decision-making, 

hazardous functions and/or physical requirements. 

 

2. Significant new or increased responsibilities (other than increased workload) 

have been permanently added by supervisorthe supervisor. 
 

3. The position is improperly placed on the salary schedule in relation to a similar 

class or position. 

 

4. An extraordinary need for a change has been identified such as a shortage of 

applications, excessive turnover, unique skills, or changea change in market 

value. 
 

For consideration: 

 

 Frequency and time-period in which duties outside job description occurred. 

•  

Ensure that the duties have not been assumed by employee without supervisor’s  

approval. 

 

Denial of Reclassification 

 

Reclassification should not happen for the following reasons: 

 

1. Workload increases. 

 

2. Seniority or length of service shall not be a basis for reclassification. 

 

 

216



Reclassification Request Procedures and Policy 

Governing Board Approved: Pending 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Outcomes 

 

Potential Outcomes: 

 

1. Change in job description 

 

2. Job title changes 

 

3. Creation of a new classification 

 

4. Out of class compensation 

 

5. No change 

 

The internal consistency and integrity of the salary schedule must not be disrupted by 

any of these recommendations.  There shall be no retroactive reclassification or salary 

adjustments. 

217



 

COMMUNICATION 



 

September 14, 2022 
 
 
Juan Campos, President 
Governing Board 
Eden Area ROP 
26316 Hesperian Blvd. 
Hayward, CA 94545 
 
RE: 2022-23 Adopted Budget Review 
 
Dear President Campos: 
 
In accordance with Education Code (EC) Sections 42127 and 52070, the Alameda County Office 
of Education (ACOE) has reviewed the 2022-23 Adopted Budget of the Eden Area Regional 
Occupation Program (EAROP or ROP). By statute, the Adopted Budget review must be 
completed by September 15 of each year. Based on our review, the 2022-23 Adopted Budget of 
the EAROP has been approved. 
 
Education Code requires the County Superintendent of Schools to approve, conditionally 
approve, or disapprove the Adopted Budget for each Local Education Agency (LEA) after a 
review that includes the following: 

 
 
• Examine the Adopted Budget to determine whether it complies with the standards and 

criteria established pursuant to EC Section 33127 and identify any technical corrections 
needed to bring the budget into compliance with those standards and criteria. 

 
• Determine whether the Adopted Budget will allow the ROP to meet its financial 

obligations during the current fiscal year and is consistent with a financial plan that will 
enable the district to satisfy its multiyear financial commitments. 

 
 
Based on our review of the ROP’s 2022-23 Adopted Budget and Multiyear Budget Projection 
(MYP), we have determined that the EAROP is in compliance with the above criteria. 
 
We want to acknowledge and express our appreciation to the District staff, the Board, and the 
community for their continued diligence and hard work.  As you may know, I will transition 
from the role of Alameda County Superintendent of Schools at the beginning of next year. It has 
been my honor to work with you, your fellow board members, your superintendent, and district 
team in service of students and families. I wish you and your community the very best. If you 
have any questions or concerns regarding our review process, please feel free to contact my 
office at (510) 670-4140. 

218



 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
L. K. Monroe  
Alameda County Superintendent of Schools  
 
cc:   Governing Board, Eden Area ROP 

Linda Granger, Superintendent, Eden Area ROP 
Anthony Oum, Fiscal Services Administrator, Eden Area ROP 

 Dr. Candi Clark, Associate Superintendent of Business Services, ACOE   
Shirene Moreira, Chief of District Business and Advisory Services, ACOE  
Joan Laursen, Director II, District Advisory Services, ACOE 

219


	Contract-American Stage Tours 22-23.pdf
	30179_EdenAreROP_Charter Confirmation Letter-22.09.30.14.57.pdf
	30179_EdenAreROP_SPAB Terms and Conditions-22.09.30.14.57.pdf
	30179_EdenAreROP_Covid 19 Notice for Charters-22.09.30.14.58.pdf

	Blank Page



